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I, Lan Hoang, declare the following:  

1. I am a Partner with the law firm of Baker & Hostetler LLP, counsel to Irving 

H. Picard, as trustee (“Trustee”) for the substantively consolidated liquidation of Bernard L. 

Madoff Investment Securities LLC (“BLMIS”) under the Securities Investor Protection Act, 

15 U.S.C. § 78aaa et seq., and the chapter 7 estate of Bernard L. Madoff (“Madoff”).   

2. I submit this declaration in support of the Trustee’s Motion In Limine Number 

1 to Exclude All Evidence and Testimony on the Actions or Inactions of the United States 

Securities and Exchange Commission; Trustee’s Motion In Limine Number 2 to Limit 

Testimony of J. Ezra Merkin; Trustee’s Motion In Limine Number 3 to Exclude the Opinions 

and Testimony of Jeffrey M. Weingarten; and Trustee’s Motion In Limine Number 4 to 

Exclude Exhibits Not Produced During Discovery. 

3. True and correct copies of the following documents are attached: 

Exhibit 1: Defendants J. Ezra Merkin and Gabriel Capital Corporation’s 
Supplemental Response to Plaintiff’s Second Set of Interrogatories 
and Requests for Admission in Accordance with Decision #3 dated 
August 30, 2013 (filed with the Court on October 8, 2015, ECF No. 
286-12). 

 
Exhibit 1A: Verification of J. Ezra Merkin dated February 23, 2015 to Defendants 

J. Ezra Merkin And Gabriel Capital Corporation's Supplemental 
Responses To Plaintiffs Second Set of Interrogatories and Requests for 
Admissions In Accordance With Decision # 3, dated August 30, 2013 
(filed with the Court on November 25, 2015, ECF No. 293-55). 

  
Exhibit 2: Excerpts from the deposition transcript of J. Ezra Merkin dated 

February 24, 2015. 
 
Exhibit 3: Excerpts from the deposition transcript of J. Ezra Merkin dated 

February 25, 2015. 
 
Exhibit 4: Excerpts from the deposition transcript of Jeffrey M. Weingarten 

dated July 15, 2015. 
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 3 

 
Exhibit 5: Expert Report of Jeffrey M. Weingarten dated March 19, 2015. 
 
Exhibit 6: Rebuttal Report of Jeffrey M. Weingarten dated May 14, 2015. 
 
Exhibit 7: Randall Smith, Wall Street Mystery Features a Big Board Rival, THE 

WALL STREET JOURNAL, Dec. 16, 1992, Bates Nos. GCC-P 0393125-
126 (filed with the Court on October 8, 2015, ECF No. 286-5). 

 
Exhibit 8: U.S. v. Madoff, No. 09-CR-213 (S.D.N.Y.), Plea Allocution dated 

March 12, 2009. 
 
Exhibit 9: 2003-2007 Black Oak Capital, LLC and Akula Energy, LLC 

statement. 
 
Exhibit 10: 1994-2009 Bracebridge Composite Performance. 
 
Exhibit 11: 1999-2008 Millennium USA LP At A Glance – “Portfolio Update” 

(NYAG SJ Ex. 93). 
 
Exhibit 12: 1977-2009 Elliott Associates, LP Performance (net of all fees) 

(NYAG SJ Ex. 94). 
 
Exhibit 13: 1996-2009 SAC Capital Internal (net of all fees) dated November 27, 

2009 (NYAG SJ Ex. 95). 
 
Exhibit 14: Correspondence from Matthew Tulchin dated January 14, 2011. 
 
Exhibit 15: Ascot Fund Limited’s Initial Disclosures dated January 13, 2014. 
 
Exhibit 16: Initial Disclosure Statement of Defendants J. Ezra Merkin and Gabriel 

Capital Corporation dated January 14, 2011. 
 
Exhibit 17: Trustee Irving H. Picard’s First Set of Requests for Production of 

Documents, Interrogatories, and Requests for Admission to 
Defendants J. Ezra Merkin and Gabriel Capital Corporation dated 
January 14, 2011. 

 
Exhibit 18: Second Set of Requests for Production of Documents to Defendants J. 

Ezra Merkin and Gabriel Capital Corporation dated January 13, 2012. 
 
Exhibit 19: Trustee’s Fourth Set of Requests for Production of Documents to 

Defendants J. Ezra Merkin and Gabriel Capital Corporation dated 
April 12, 2013. 
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Exhibit 20: Trustee’s Fourth Set of Requests for Production of Documents to 

Defendants Ascot Partners, L.P. dated June 3, 2013. 
 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct pursuant to 28 

U.S.C § 1746 (2). 

Dated: April 7, 2017   
 New York, New York By:    /s/ Lan Hoang        
         45 Rockefeller Plaza 
 New York, New York 10111 
 Telephone: (212) 589-4200 
 Facsimile:  (212) 589-4201  
 Email: lhoang@bakerlaw.com 
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andrew.levander@dechert.com 

Gary J. Mennitt 

gary.mennitt@dechert.com 

Neil A. Steiner 

neil.steiner@dechert.com 

 

Attorneys for Defendants J. Ezra Merkin  

and Gabriel Capital Corporation 

 

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

In re: 

 

BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT   

SECURITIES LLC,  

 

Debtor. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

X 

  : 

  : 

  : 

  : 

  : 

  : 

   X 

 

 

SIPA LIQUIDATION 

 

    No. 08-01789 (BRL) 

IRVING H. PICARD, Trustee for the Liquidation 

of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC, 

Plaintiff, 

 

v. 

J. EZRA MERKIN, GABRIEL CAPITAL, L.P., 

ARIEL FUND LTD., ASCOT PARTNERS, L.P., 

GABRIEL CAPITAL CORPORATION, 

Defendants. 

: 

: 

: 

: 

: 

: 

: 

: 

: 

: 

: 

: 

     Adv. Proc. No. 09-01182 (BRL) 

 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  X  

 

DEFENDANTS J. EZRA MERKIN AND GABRIEL CAPITAL CORPORATION’S  

SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSES TO PLAINTIFF’S SECOND SET OF 

INTERROGATORIES AND REQUESTS FOR ADMISSIONS  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH DECISION #3 
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Pursuant to Rules 26 and 33 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (made applicable by 

Rules 7026 and 7033 of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure), Rule 7033-1 of the Local 

Rules of the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the “Local 

Rules”), and Judge Cyganowski’s Decision #3, Defendants J. Ezra Merkin (“Merkin”) and 

Gabriel Capital Corporation (“GCC” and with Merkin, “Defendants”), by their attorneys, 

Dechert LLP, hereby supplement their responses to Interrogatories No. 1, 2, 3, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 

15 and 16 of Plaintiff’s Second Set of Interrogatories and Request No. 9 of Plaintiff’s Requests 

for Admissions.  These supplemental responses incorporate by reference the General Objections 

and each of the Specific Objections set forth in Defendants’ Answers and Objections to 

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Interrogatories and Responses to Plaintiff’s Requests for Admissions, as 

if fully set forth herein, and are made without waiver of any such objections. 

SUPPLEMENTAL ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NOS. 1, 2, 3, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 AND 13: 

 

Subject to and without waiving their objections, and expressly preserving the right to 

supplement this Interrogatory Response, Defendants state as follows: 

Prior to investing with Mr. Madoff, Mr. Merkin had conversations with a number of 

sophisticated investors who were clients of Mr. Madoff and had accounts with his firm, 

Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities, LLC (“BLMIS”), concerning Mr. Madoff’s 

reputation, trading strategy and risks.  Those investors included Leon Meyers (at the time the 

manager of the Scheuer family office), Sandra Manske (at the time a senior executive of the 

Tremont funds and later the founder of the Maxam funds), David Gottesman (the founder of 

First Manhattan Corporation and a director of Berkshire Hathaway), Gedale Horowitz (who at 

the time ran Salomon Brothers’ municipal bond department), and Daniel Hoffert (a successful 

Wall Street investor), all of whom spoke very highly of Mr. Madoff and his investment 
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strategies.  Mr. Merkin also had conversations with customers of BLMIS’s market-making 

operations.  And Mr. Merkin discussed Mr. Madoff with his father, Hermann Merkin (a 

successful businessman and investor), who told his son that “I know Bernie, and he’s okay,” 

which Ezra Merkin understood to be high praise coming from his father.   

In addition, prior to investing with Mr. Madoff, Mr. Merkin met with Mr. Madoff in 

Mr. Madoff’s offices, and discussed Mr. Madoff’s trading strategies as well as Mr. Madoff’s 

market-making activities.  Mr. Madoff also explained that BLMIS operated a significant 

wholesale business, in which its customers included Charles Schwab and Fidelity.  They also 

discussed Mr. Madoff’s and his brother’s involvement in industry affairs.  As Mr. Merkin 

understood, Mr. Madoff at that time had a sterling reputation; was heavily involved in 

industry affairs; and his firm was a very dominant market maker with an extraordinary share 

of the trading in certain NYSE stocks, particularly heavily traded, large cap stocks.  Indeed, 

Mr. Madoff subsequently became the chairman of NASDAQ.   

Mr. Merkin first invested with Mr. Madoff and BLMIS through Mr. Meyers and the 

Scheuer family’s account with Mr. Madoff.  After a period of time and gaining additional 

comfort with Mr. Madoff and his trading strategies, Mr. Merkin thereafter opened managed 

accounts with BLMIS on behalf of Gabriel Capital L.P., Ariel Fund Limited, Ascot Fund 

Limited (which was subsequently transferred to the account of Ascot Partners, L.P., in 

connection with a reorganization of the domestic and offshore Ascot funds), and Ascot 

Partners, L.P. (collectively, the “Funds”), and delegated trading authority over those accounts 

to Mr. Madoff.   

As an additional part of his due diligence on and monitoring of Mr. Madoff and 

BLMIS, Mr. Merkin maintained a file that included newspaper articles and profiles of Mr. 
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Madoff, notes of certain of his meetings with Mr. Madoff, and information concerning other 

funds that had significant investments with Mr. Madoff and BLMIS.  For example, Mr. 

Merkin reviewed and retained a 1989 article from Forbes describing how BLMIS made 

markets in 250 of the largest, most actively traded stocks and identifying some of its biggest 

customers, including A.G. Edwards, Charles Schwab, and Fidelity.  Another Forbes article, 

from 1992, similarly described Mr. Madoff and his firm as one of the biggest of the new age 

traders on Wall Street who were competing with the New York Stock Exchange for trades, 

and an April 1993 International Herald Tribune likewise discussed how Mr. Madoff was 

gaining the upper hand in a competition with the New York and American Stock Exchanges.  

And a very significant New York Times article from 1992 discussed the United States 

Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) investigation into unregistered notes being 

marketed by Avellino & Bienes, a Florida accounting firm, and reported on the SEC’s relief 

that all of the money that had been raised from the sale of the notes -- $440 million -- had 

been deposited in an account with BLMIS and managed by Mr. Madoff, and was able to be 

liquidated and returned to the note purchasers almost immediately.   

Moreover, Mr. Madoff was widely credited with breaking the New York Stock 

Exchange’s hegemony over Wall Street trading.  Thus, by 1999 -- as reflected in New York 

Times and Wall Street Journal articles that Mr. Merkin read and retained in his file -- BLMIS 

entered into a joint venture with Goldman Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Salomon Smith Barney, 

and Merrill Lynch to establish the first electronic trading platform for NYSE stocks.  That 

those four well-established Wall Street firms were willing to enter into a joint venture with 

BLMIS further enhanced Mr. Madoff’s reputation and provided additional comfort to Mr. 

Merkin.  Moreover, as Mr. Merkin knew, Mr. Madoff frequently met with industry leaders at 
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the SEC and regularly testified in Congress about developments in the securities industry and 

the ongoing transformation of the U.S. financial markets.   

As an additional part of his due diligence and monitoring of the Funds’ investments, 

Mr. Merkin met with Mr. Madoff ten to fifteen times a year by phone or in person to discuss 

trading strategies.  These conversations ranged from general discussions of Mr. Madoff’s 

trading strategies, to potential changes in or refinements of the trading strategies, to 

discussions about the market, then-current market trends, and other market participants.  From 

time to time, Mr. Merkin arranged and participated in meetings between Mr. Madoff and 

certain investors in the Funds, including Gedale Horowitz, Ludwig Bravmann, Alec Hackel, 

Christof Reichmuth, Patrick Erne, Michael Matlin, and Roman Igilnikov and others from 

Union Bancaire Privee.  Mr. Merkin also discussed Mr. Madoff and his investment strategy 

with many other customers of Mr. Madoff and BLMIS, including Ludwig Jesselson, David 

Gottesman, and Leon Meyers, as well as with other sophisticated investors including people 

who served on the Yeshiva University Investment Committee.  Mr. Merkin also discussed Mr. 

Madoff, his trading strategy and BLMIS with representatives of BNP Paribas as part of their 

due diligence in connection with a proposal to create a levered version of Ascot.   

Mr. Merkin also knew that BLMIS was a registered broker-dealer and later registered 

as an investment advisor, and therefore was subject to periodic and surprise inspections by its 

primary regulator, the SEC.  The fact that Mr. Madoff and his firm were regularly inspected 

by the SEC and the SEC had never raised any significant issue about the firm’s operations -- 

in one of their many conversations, Mr. Madoff reported that the SEC had visited BLMIS’s 

offices to conduct reviews eight times in sixteen years -- gave Mr. Merkin additional comfort 

about Mr. Madoff’s bona fides.     
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As a further part of the due diligence on and monitoring of the Funds’ investments, Mr. 

Merkin had complete transparency to what he -- and many others -- understood was the 

trading being conducted by Mr. Madoff in the Funds’ accounts.  BLMIS sent confirmations of 

every trade supposedly made in the accounts, which were reviewed by GCC employees and 

input into GCC’s portfolio management system (“PMS”).  GCC employees then reconciled 

GCC’s accounting records against to the monthly statements received from BLMIS.  The 

PMS system enabled GCC employees to generate daily reports showing any transactions as 

well as profit and loss information for the portfolio, which Mr. Merkin would review on a 

daily basis.  Mr. Merkin also regularly checked the portfolio to ensure that there were a 

sufficient number of put options to cover the value of the equities owned when the account 

was invested in the market.   

Another important part of Defendants’ due diligence and monitoring of the Funds’ 

investments was the annual audit of the Funds’ financial statements conducted by BDO 

Seidman LLP (“BDO”).  BDO was given unfettered access to GCC’s employees and records 

to conduct its audits of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards.  As part of its audit, BDO reviewed and tested various trade confirmations and 

monthly statements, and communicated directly with BLMIS concerning the value of the 

Funds’ investments.  In addition, BDO requested and received copies of audited financial 

statements and statements of internal controls certified by BLMIS’s auditor, and never raised 

any issue about either the contents of those statements or the identity or qualifications of 

BLMIS’s auditor (Mr. Madoff had explained to Mr. Merkin that he used a small accounting 

firm because they understood his business and provided superior customer service and 

partner-level attention compared to a larger firm).   
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Picard v. Merkin           J. Ezra Merkin  2-24-15

877.404.2193
BENDISH REPORTING   

1

           UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

           SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

---------------------------------x

In Re:

BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT       Adv.Pro.No.

SECURITIES LLC,                    08-01789(BRL)

             Debtor.

---------------------------------x

IRVING H. PICARD, Trustee for the

Liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff

Investment Securities LLC,

             Plaintiff,             Adv.Pro.No.

                                    09-1182(BRL)

             v.

J. EZRA MERKIN, GABRIEL CAPITAL,

L.P., ARIEL FUND LTD., ASCOT

PARTNERS, L.P., GABRIEL CAPITAL

CORPORATION,

             Defendants.

---------------------------------x

         VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF J. EZRA MERKIN,

as reported by Nancy C. Bendish, Certified Court

Reporter, RMR, CRR, and Notary Public of the

State of New York, at the offices of Baker

Hostetler, 45 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, New

York, on Tuesday, February 24, 2015, commencing

at 9:47 a.m.
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1       Q.     Do you know when he invested with

2 Mr. Madoff?

3       A.     I don't know.  I don't know.  It

4 may have been a number of years prior to this.

5 If this is the late '80s, this might have been

6 either directly or perhaps with friends, and I'm

7 just not sure, he may have been an investor as

8 much as a decade earlier or sometime in between

9 and it may have been not under his name.  So,

10 that is he may have been an investor in an

11 entity that was an investor of Mr. Madoff's.  My

12 first investment with Mr. Madoff was through

13 something called 61M Associates, something like

14 that.

15       Q.     Did you ever discuss with your

16 father his investment experience with

17 Mr. Madoff?

18       A.     My father was not a person of many

19 words and my father was very sparing in praise

20 and had a very constructive opinion of

21 Mr. Madoff and his investing abilities.

22       Q.     That sounds, pardon me, like a

23 conclusion.  What I'm asking is whether or not

24 you ever discussed the actual investment

25 experience that your dad had with Mr. Madoff.

09-01182-smb    Doc 337-3    Filed 04/07/17    Entered 04/07/17 18:01:36    Exhibit 2   
 Pg 3 of 10



Picard v. Merkin           J. Ezra Merkin  2-24-15

877.404.2193
BENDISH REPORTING   

150

1       A.     So when I said he was a person of

2 spare praise and few words, he spoke in

3 conclusions.  So he would say I knew Bernie, I

4 know Bernie and Bernie's okay, or I know Bernie

5 and he's okay.  That's what I mean.  You

6 consider that is a conclusion, perhaps, but

7 that's what he said.

8       Q.     Is that the extent of the

9 conversation you and he had?

10       A.     At that particular time, that is

11 certainly the extent that I remember.  This is

12 going back a while.

13       Q.     I understand.

14       A.     I don't remember -- I don't

15 remember specifics about what was bought or sold

16 or owned for that investment process.

17       Q.     Okay.  Did there come a time after

18 that when you had any, any discussions with your

19 father about investing with Bernie Madoff?

20       A.     Well, my father died in 1999 and

21 so let's just say roughly ten years later, then

22 this period of time, so maybe '11, I don't know,

23 the late '80s versus the late '90s -- no, I do

24 know when my father passed away but I'm

25 saying -- so my father was 92 -- was not quite
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1 92 when he died, and I didn't have that many

2 further discussions that I remember with him on

3 that subject.

4       Q.     Okay.  Let's go back to your

5 meeting, if I may, with Mr. Madoff.

6              So, how was it that you came to

7 meet with him in the first place?

8       A.     I don't remember the circumstances

9 of the first meeting and I don't remember when

10 the first meeting was, exactly, and I have a

11 vague memory that I met Bernie downtown, meaning

12 he -- it may have been before he moved his

13 office uptown and I don't know when he moved his

14 office uptown.  I have a vague memory that I met

15 him still when he was on Wall Street.  I mean

16 that literally, that he had an office on a

17 street called Wall Street.  I don't mean the

18 financial district.

19       Q.     I understand.

20       A.     It's in the financial district but

21 if there was there was one.  This was the

22 beginning of our due diligence process and the

23 discussions that I remember more clearly are

24 already uptown at Third Avenue in the east 50s.

25       Q.     What were you doing at that time?
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1 can be very, very, very additive.

2       Q.     You indicated -- I'm sorry, I'm

3 moving around.  I'm going to page 5 of this

4 document, 354.  Down in the last paragraph.

5       A.     Just one second.

6       Q.     Sure, take your time.

7       A.     Just trying to get there.  Sorry.

8       Q.     It's a paragraph that starts,

9 "Mr. Merkin also knew."  And if you travel on

10 down, you start -- you discuss the SEC.  I want

11 to be sure I don't miss something here.  Sorry,

12 I might have jumped over something.

13       A.     It's okay.

14       Q.     Boy, your memory place tricks

15 here.

16       A.     Would you say that for the record,

17 please.

18       Q.     I would readily admit it to the

19 jury.  Just ask Brian Williams.

20              Let's go back to page 5 and the

21 SEC.

22       A.     Last paragraph?

23       Q.     Yeah, last paragraph.  I'm going

24 to just read it.  "In one of their many

25 conversations, Mr. Madoff reported that the SEC
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1 had visited BLMIS's offices to conduct reviews

2 eight times in 16 years, and that gave you

3 additional comfort about Mr. Madoff's bona

4 fides."  Do you see that?

5       A.     I do.

6              MR. STEINER:  It wasn't exactly a

7 correct reading, but close enough.

8              MR. SHEEHAN:  All right.  I stand

9 by the record, not by what I said, all right?

10 Just suggesting a question.

11       Q.     But can you tell me what you

12 discussed that gave you comfort?

13       A.     Unless I'm missing, it says -- the

14 specific reference to the SEC reviews?

15       Q.     Yes.  Did he tell you what they

16 did?

17       A.     Oh.  I thought you were saying

18 something about the comfort.

19       Q.     No.

20       A.     He had either scheduled or

21 surprise visits from the SEC with some

22 regularity and some frequency, perhaps more on

23 the regular than on the surprises.  He was very

24 proud of his overall compliance record and just

25 sort of a clean bill of health with occasional
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1 references to one or two smaller things, and it

2 certainly meant a great deal to me that the SEC,

3 with the power of subpoena, with the ability to

4 spend days at the firm, which is how he

5 presented it, came away and said, you know,

6 thank God for Bernie.  And that was very

7 significant to me.

8       Q.     My question, though, was, maybe I

9 wasn't clear so I'll restate it.

10              Did he tell you what exactly the

11 SEC did during these visits?

12       A.     Yeah.  He -- his operation was

13 reviewed by the SEC.  It is my memory on the --

14 on what I thought of as the two sort of aspects

15 of the business.

16       Q.     What I'm asking you for is

17 specifically, for example, did he tell you that

18 they asked for access to DTCC to verify the fact

19 that he had the stock he said he had?

20       A.     I don't remember that

21 conversation.

22       Q.     Did he ever represent to you that

23 that happened?

24       A.     I truly don't remember.

25       Q.     Okay.  Page 6 if you would,
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1 bump into him then a couple times a year for

2 that.  And there was always or almost always an

3 opportunity to ask him something that I wasn't

4 sure about in terms of where the strategy --

5 whether it had been executed properly or where

6 the strategy might be headed to next.

7              Madoff's continued and growing

8 success and prominence in the securities

9 industry was very significant.  He did end up in

10 the position he achieved at NASDAQ, as its

11 chairman, and he went to Washington for hearings

12 for testimony.

13              I remember an occasion when he and

14 the president of the stock exchange and a former

15 chairman of the SEC were basically the three

16 persons who congressional committees wanted to

17 speak to.  That all goes to various and

18 different forms of due diligence.

19              Continued to talk to investors,

20 continued to talk to investors of his not

21 through us, who I thought were thoughtful and

22 insightful investors, bringing investors to see

23 him was a big part of what we were after.

24              Various events that took place in

25 the securities industry mattered to me a great
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1 deal.  Not at the very beginning but closer to

2 then than the end the way an accounting firm

3 called Avellino & Bienes' pool was unwound by

4 the SEC's regional administrator in New York,

5 all the assets, or very substantially all the

6 assets to be managed at Madoff and with the very

7 clear reassurance from the SEC that every penny

8 was properly accounted for, was a very important

9 piece of information.

10              It meant that the SEC, which had

11 every reason to look especially careful,

12 especially carefully at a fund that had been put

13 together that had clear legal issues, forcing

14 the liquefication of the fund and putting the

15 fund out of business was basically saying we

16 found the fund to be managed by Madoff and we

17 were very, very happy to tell you that

18 everything is there.

19              There was a quote from Richard

20 Walker who was then the regional administrator

21 in an article in the Wall Street Journal, and it

22 was very important.  The development of

23 something called Primex, which was a trading

24 platform, that was to be managed by Madoff.

25              Madoff didn't really look for
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           UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

           SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

---------------------------------x

In Re:

BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT       Adv.Pro.No.

SECURITIES LLC,                    08-01789(BRL)

             Debtor.

---------------------------------x

IRVING H. PICARD, Trustee for the

Liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff

Investment Securities LLC,

             Plaintiff,             Adv.Pro.No.

                                    09-1182(BRL)

             v.

J. EZRA MERKIN, GABRIEL CAPITAL,

L.P., ARIEL FUND LTD., ASCOT

PARTNERS, L.P., GABRIEL CAPITAL

CORPORATION,

             Defendants.

---------------------------------x

             CONTINUED VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF

J. EZRA MERKIN, as reported by Nancy C. Bendish,

Certified Court Reporter, RMR, CRR, and Notary

Public of the State of New York, at the offices

of Baker Hostetler, 45 Rockefeller Plaza, New

York, New York, on Wednesday, February 25, 2015,

commencing at 9:42 a.m.

09-01182-smb    Doc 337-4    Filed 04/07/17    Entered 04/07/17 18:01:36    Exhibit 3   
 Pg 2 of 41



Picard v. Merkin           J. Ezra Merkin  2-25-15

877.404.2193
BENDISH REPORTING   

374

1       A.     Oh, how much time passed?

2       Q.     How much time had passed before

3 you started speaking about BLMIS.

4       A.     I don't remember.

5       Q.     How often would you speak about

6 BLMIS?

7       A.     With Mr. Meyers?

8       Q.     Yes.

9       A.     Over the years?

10       Q.     In the initial time frame.  In

11 this late '80s time period.

12       A.     I don't remember.

13       Q.     Did Mr. Meyers tell you that he

14 conducted due diligence on BLMIS?

15       A.     I don't remember the nature of

16 those conversations.

17       Q.     Do you have any documentation from

18 those discussions?

19       A.     Again, I suppose the answer to the

20 question is yes if the note in the file, if

21 that's what it is, that we referred to, say,

22 five or ten minutes ago, so if it's in fact his,

23 and regardless of whether it's B-E-M-I-S at the

24 top of it or not, if it's there, then that would

25 have been something that he would have sent me
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1 around that time.

2              One way of determining that is

3 seeing what the last year on that is because he

4 would have sent me something that was reasonably

5 up to date.  So, therefore, I'm not testifying,

6 but speculating, those are two different

7 functions, reasonably contemporaneous with the

8 period you're talking about.

9       Q.     After your initial conversations

10 with Mr. Meyers, did you have any discussions

11 with him regarding the performance of your

12 respective BLMIS accounts?

13       A.     When you say respective, at that

14 time they weren't respective.

15       Q.     After your initial discussions,

16 after, in 1990, did you ever have conversations

17 with Mr. Meyers regarding the performance of

18 your respective BLMIS accounts?

19       A.     Yes.  Yes.

20       Q.     What do you recall from those

21 discussions?

22       A.     Well, Leon Meyers and I have had

23 conversations about the investment world going

24 back, let's just say, to '85, '86, '87 and have

25 had one as recently as last week.  So I have
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1 spent all those years talking to Leon, I suppose

2 possibly twice a day, sometimes twice a week,

3 sometimes twice a month, sometimes twice a

4 quarter.  I think my guess would be in all

5 instances more frequently than twice a year.  So

6 I'm not going to go to twice a year.  And Madoff

7 was a theme of our conversations, surely not

8 every one, but was a constant theme of our

9 conversations.  Performance would certainly have

10 been part of it.  Most of them focused on

11 visits, telephone calls, understandings, changes

12 in the strategy, possible changes in the

13 strategy, and was he in or was he out, if that

14 was something that we were then talking about.

15       Q.     Did you ever have any

16 conversations with Mr. Meyers where you tried to

17 determine how Mr. Madoff chose to enter and exit

18 the market?

19       A.     Probably.

20       Q.     Did you ever come to any

21 conclusions with Mr. Meyers?

22       A.     About what he -- how he --

23       Q.     How Mr. Madoff chose to enter and

24 exit the markets.

25       A.     You're asking me specifically
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1 whether Mr. Meyers and I in a conversation

2 concluded that this is how he did it?

3       Q.     Yes.

4       A.     I don't remember any specifics of

5 that kind of a -- I just don't remember any

6 specific conversation on that.

7              MR. SONG:  We've been talking

8 about an hour, I think now is a good time for a

9 break.

10              MR. STEINER:  Sure.

11              THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Off the record,

12 10:42.

13              (Recess taken.)

14              THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Back on 11:07.

15 BY MR. SONG:

16       Q.     Mr. Merkin, can I have you turn to

17 Trustee's Exhibit 363, which is your, what we

18 designated yesterday as your Madoff file.

19       A.     So we're done with this for the

20 moment?

21       Q.     For the moment, yes.

22       A.     That's that big thing you gave me

23 yesterday in rubber bands?

24       Q.     Yes.

25       A.     Keep a semblance of order here.
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1 she did.

2       Q.     What do you recall that

3 relationship to be?

4       A.     I think she had an -- she

5 supervised either a pooled vehicle there or a

6 series of accounts, and was proficient on the

7 subject and knew what she was talking about.

8       Q.     Do you recall when you had those

9 discussions with -- let me back up.

10              When do you recall having

11 discussions with Ms. Manzke about BLMIS?

12       A.     The specific dates?  I don't

13 remember.  Early that period of time, perhaps

14 very late '80s, perhaps not quite so late '80s,

15 perhaps '90, around that period of time.

16       Q.     Do you know if you had more than

17 one conversation with Ms. Manzke?

18       A.     Yes.  I mean, yes I -- either in

19 person or on the phone?

20       Q.     Yes.

21       A.     Including those conversations,

22 yes.

23       Q.     Do you have an estimate as to how

24 many times you spoke to her prior to investing

25 with BLMIS?
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1       A.     Nothing terribly reliable, the

2 estimate.

3       Q.     Did Ms. Manzke tell you that she

4 had conducted due diligence on BLMIS?

5       A.     I don't remember the specifics of

6 the conversation, but I remember forming an

7 impression that she had been to the office, that

8 she knew Bernie, that she'd had conversations

9 about the strategies.

10       Q.     And did Ms. Manzke send you any

11 documentation in the course of your

12 conversations -- or in the course of your due

13 diligence on BLMIS?

14       A.     She may have.  I don't remember.

15       Q.     Did you take any notes of your

16 conversations with Ms. Manzke?

17       A.     I don't remember.

18       Q.     If you had taken notes regarding

19 your conversations about BLMIS with Ms. Manzke,

20 would you have put them in your Madoff file?

21       A.     If I had them, very likely, yes.

22       Q.     The next name on the list on page

23 2 is David Gottesman.

24       A.     Gottesman, yes.

25       Q.     Gottesman.  And prior to 1990 did
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1 investor or the funds became investors of

2 Mr. Madoff's.

3       Q.     And what did you discuss with

4 Mr. Gottesman?

5       A.     Mr. Madoff, his personal

6 reputation, the strategy and so forth.

7       Q.     Were you aware at that time, prior

8 to 1990, whether Mr. Gottesman had a personal

9 investment with BLMIS or whether it was in a

10 pooled vehicle or investor money?

11       A.     I don't remember.

12       Q.     And did Mr. Gottesman tell you

13 that he conducted due diligence on BLMIS?

14       A.     I don't remember his saying that

15 in those words.  I know Mr. Gottesman and he

16 doesn't -- he's a very careful and methodical

17 investor.  In his case, one of the impressions I

18 do remember, he had a very high opinion of

19 Bernie Madoff, the person.  Thought he was an

20 innovative person, that some of the things he

21 had done in terms of his challenge of on-board

22 versus off-board trading, his willingness to

23 take on the (indiscernible) of the New York

24 Stock Exchange were all things that

25 Mr. Gottesman knew about, was aware of.

09-01182-smb    Doc 337-4    Filed 04/07/17    Entered 04/07/17 18:01:36    Exhibit 3   
 Pg 9 of 41



Picard v. Merkin           J. Ezra Merkin  2-25-15

877.404.2193
BENDISH REPORTING   

386

1              It was not quite at this time, but

2 Mr. Gottesman's decision to have Mr. Madoff join

3 the university board and become the chairman of

4 their business school board, become at some

5 point the treasurer of the university, a member

6 of the executive committee, were later events,

7 some of them not that much later because that

8 takes place over a series of years, that I think

9 reflected those views.

10       Q.     Did Mr. Gottesman ever share with

11 you how much he invested in BLMIS?

12       A.     I don't remember.

13       Q.     Would the amount of money that

14 Mr. Gottesman placed with BLMIS be of any

15 significance to you?

16              MS. ARCHER:  Object to the form.

17       A.     I don't remember.  At the time

18 Mr. Gottesman had -- was a very, very, very

19 significant investor in Berkshire Hathaway.

20 It's possible that even then I was aware, or I

21 believe is the case which is he was the largest

22 single individual shareholder in Berkshire other

23 than Mr. Buffett.  They're institutional

24 investors, but I think at some point I realized

25 he had a larger -- perhaps was a larger investor
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1 than anybody -- any other individual.

2              So nothing -- he was never going

3 to invest with some other person.  Just for

4 sheer size, of what he might have had with

5 Berkshire and therefore what he had someplace

6 else was not something that I necessarily asked

7 about or remember hearing about or paid that

8 much attention to.  Unless it was trivial, but I

9 don't have any memory that it was trivial.

10       Q.     What would be a trivial amount in

11 your mind?

12       A.     Then?

13              MR. STEINER:  Objection to form.

14       Q.     Yes.

15       A.     I don't know.

16       Q.     The next name on the list is

17 Mr. Gedale Horowitz.

18       A.     Um-hum.

19       Q.     Again, prior to 1990, did you have

20 a relationship with Mr. Horowitz?

21       A.     Yes.

22       Q.     How would you describe that

23 relationship?

24       A.     I knew him.  I knew him probably a

25 little bit less well than I knew Mr. Gottesman
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1 but not that much less well.  He was a -- had

2 been a figure at the Yeshiva University board.

3 I'm not sure he was still on the board but he

4 was the chairman of their investment committee

5 at that time and I had, by then I'm pretty sure,

6 joined the investment committee.  I'm not sure I

7 necessarily was then chairing it.  Pardon me.

8 Can't quite place the time sequence today.

9              He ran Solomon Brothers' municipal

10 department, municipals department which, when he

11 ran it, until -- the department was closed, was

12 sort of a huge firm within a firm.  He was

13 probably one of the leading spokesmen for the

14 muni industry.  The nature of the muni industry

15 is such that government relations are very

16 critical because municipals are debt securities

17 issued by government entities, perhaps without

18 exception.  They don't qualify for their tax

19 advantages.

20              What I remember from a

21 conversation with him, very specifically at that

22 time, was the extent to which the regulatory

23 world and the congressional world held

24 Mr. Madoff in such high esteem.  That would have

25 been something that would have been important to
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1 me and he would have been a very critical figure

2 in knowing, because he was constantly traveling

3 among states, and specifically to Congress in

4 Washington, on governmental relations, because

5 they're so important to the muni industry, and

6 because Solomon was such a dominant name in

7 municipals.  And he kept saying to me -- he was

8 the person who said to me at that time, Bernie

9 Madoff, a legend on Wall Street.  He said, but

10 you -- but possibly even more so, even more than

11 a legend in Congress.  Given Bernie's testifying

12 down there and given the extent to which they

13 had looked to him for certain issues in the

14 securities industry.

15       Q.     Did you know whether or not

16 Mr. Horowitz had a -- any kind of a personal

17 relationship with Mr. Madoff at that point in

18 time?

19       A.     I don't really remember today

20 whether that was the case or not.  I have very

21 specific memories of their knowing each other

22 subsequent to that time.  In other words, I can

23 tell you about things subsequent to that, but

24 they did very clearly know each other, but I

25 don't remember today whether I knew that then or
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1 whether I didn't know that then.

2       Q.     And the reason I'm asking is the

3 conversation that you had with Mr. Horowitz

4 regarding Mr. Madoff's reputation, do you know

5 whether that was based on Mr. Horowitz's

6 personal knowledge or whether he also learned

7 that through -- or he was relaying to you

8 Mr. Madoff's reputation from other people?

9       A.     The short answer is I don't know.

10       Q.     Do you know whether or not

11 Mr. Horowitz had a personal account with BLMIS?

12       A.     I don't know whether he had a

13 personal account at that time.

14       Q.     Do you know if he ever had a

15 personal account?

16       A.     Oh, I thought you asked me that.

17 I don't know for sure.

18       Q.     Do you know whether or not

19 Mr. Horowitz was ever personally invested

20 through any vehicle with BLMIS?

21       A.     Yes.

22       Q.     What vehicle was that?

23       A.     Ascot Partners LP.

24       Q.     And when did --

25       A.     I'm not sure it was him
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1 personally.  I think it was family trusts, but I

2 would take that to be something that you would

3 want me to answer yes to in your question.

4       Q.     Yes.  Do you know when

5 Mr. Horowitz began his investments with Ascot

6 Partners?

7       A.     Early on in Ascot history and I

8 can't place the exact date or time or year.

9       Q.     Did Mr. Horowitz ever tell you

10 that he conducted due diligence on BLMIS?

11       A.     I don't remember.

12       Q.     And if you hadn't -- if you -- do

13 you have any documentation regarding your

14 discussions and conversations with Mr. Horowitz

15 regarding BLMIS?

16       A.     None that comes to mind, but I

17 don't remember.

18       Q.     If you had such documentation, you

19 probably would have put it in your BLMIS file?

20       A.     Probably.

21              MR. STEINER:  Objection to form.

22       A.     But depends.

23       Q.     Do you recall a meeting between

24 yourself, Mr. Madoff and Mr. Horowitz in

25 February of 2003?
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1       A.     I recall a meeting.  I can't quite

2 place when it was.

3       Q.     Do you recall what the purpose of

4 that meeting was?

5       A.     I think Mr. Horowitz was

6 interested in -- either had already become an

7 investor in Ascot Partners LP or was

8 contemplating becoming an investor.  I would

9 imagine by that time Yeshiva University was an

10 investor.  I think he was the chairman of the

11 investment committee when Yeshiva University

12 became an investor.  Obviously his views of

13 Mr. Madoff mattered much to that investment.

14              Mr. Gottesman was either on -- was

15 either already the chairman of the board or

16 certainly on the investment committee when that

17 happened, and if that happened at this time,

18 that would have been part of the discussions

19 about Madoff with these two people.  I just

20 don't -- you may know, I'm trying to answer the

21 question.  If you know when that investment was

22 made, it either fits in your time period or it's

23 a little bit later, but it's not a long time

24 later.

25       Q.     Okay.  Do you recall anything?
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1 was a bit of discussion about SEC chairman but

2 I'm not sure I -- that that is in front of me.

3 That is what I remember their talking about.

4       Q.     Did you arrange the meeting

5 between Mr. Horowitz and Mr. Madoff?

6       A.     I think so.

7       Q.     Do you know why you needed to

8 arrange the meeting if Mr. Horowitz and

9 Mr. Madoff had a personal relationship?

10       A.     I think Mr. Horowitz, as either a

11 fiduciary for or as an investor in Ascot

12 Partners LP, thought that that was the way to

13 have the introduction, or have the request made.

14       Q.     And did you take any notes from

15 this meeting?

16       A.     Again, I'm not sure I was at the

17 meeting or this is my memory of what they told

18 me about the meeting.  They meaning mostly

19 Gedale.

20       Q.     Other than this one meeting that

21 we were discussing, do you recall any other

22 occasions in which you arranged a meeting

23 between Mr. Horowitz and Mr. Madoff?

24       A.     I don't remember if there was a

25 request for another meeting, that didn't happen
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1 list is Daniel Hoffert.  Am I saying that right?

2       A.     Hoffert, I think.

3       Q.     Prior to -- again prior to 1990

4 did you have a relationship with Mr. Hoffert?

5       A.     Yes.

6       Q.     And how would you describe that

7 relationship?

8       A.     I knew Mr. Hoffert, he was

9 probably older than I am, and he was someone I

10 knew from our neighborhood and community in New

11 York City when I was growing up.  He no longer

12 lived in New York City, probably even then, he

13 lived in Florida.

14       Q.     Mr. Merkin, can I ask you not to

15 put your hand to your mouth.

16       A.     Okay.

17       Q.     Did there come a time in which

18 Mr. Hoffert became an investor with Gabriel?

19       A.     Yes.  Or some family entity did.

20       Q.     And do you recall when you first

21 met Mr. Hoffert to discuss BLMIS?

22       A.     I don't remember that, when we met

23 to discuss it.  I think he was already in

24 Florida, called me and asked me one or two

25 questions about Madoff.  He said he had had -- I
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1 think I remember the conversation going

2 something like as follows, because I told him

3 that Gabriel Capital LP -- this is either around

4 the time that he became an investor, or maybe it

5 was earlier.  We had discussed the merger

6 arbitrage business and he said to me, you must

7 know somebody else who's in the merger arbitrage

8 business.  That's not such an infrequent

9 question.  And I said, who'd you have in mind

10 and he said, Bernie Madoff.  And I said, I would

11 not think of Bernie Madoff as someone who is in

12 the merger arbitrage business.  And he said, no,

13 no, no, not merger arbitrage business.

14 Arbitrage business.  He's an arbitrager.  "He"

15 meaning Madoff, not Mr. Hoffert.  And I thought

16 in some sense that made some sense.  And he sent

17 me some form of either a confirmation or perhaps

18 it was a monthly statement to give me some sense

19 of why he called him an arbitrager and what he

20 was doing with him.

21       Q.     I'm going you to go back to your

22 Madoff file.

23       A.     To the rubber bands?

24       Q.     Yes.  This will be relatively easy

25 to find.
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1 have been an earlier document.  That's what I'm

2 trying to get at, that I didn't keep or that I

3 don't have that wasn't in the file, wasn't

4 there.  So I'm not sure that this is the

5 document that I was referring to when I said we

6 had the earlier conversations and the earlier

7 document.

8       Q.     Okay.  Did Mr. Hoffert tell you

9 that he conducted due diligence on BLMIS?

10       A.     I don't remember the conversation.

11       Q.     And do you know when Mr. Hoffert

12 passed?

13       A.     I am guessing around -- the answer

14 is no, I don't.  I'm guessing around 2010.

15       Q.     Do you know if Mr. Hoffert was

16 asked to testify in any matters regarding your

17 investments in BLMIS?

18       A.     I have no idea.

19       Q.     If you turn to page 3 of the

20 interrogatory response --

21       A.     Okay.  Let me put this -- may I

22 seek your advice.  Am I putting the rubber bands

23 back on or not?

24       Q.     I would not put the rubber bands

25 back on.

09-01182-smb    Doc 337-4    Filed 04/07/17    Entered 04/07/17 18:01:36    Exhibit 3   
 Pg 20 of 41



Picard v. Merkin           J. Ezra Merkin  2-25-15

877.404.2193
BENDISH REPORTING   

402

1       A.     I asked the right person the right

2 question.

3       Q.     If you turn to page 3, the first

4 full sentence at the top says you had

5 conversations with customers of BLMIS's market

6 making operations.

7       A.     Um-hum.

8       Q.     Do you recall who those customers

9 were?

10       A.     Well, Fidelity for sure.  And I

11 don't remember at the moment who else it might

12 have been.  There might have been somebody at

13 Charles Schwab.  I just don't remember.

14       Q.     Do you recall the particular

15 person you spoke to at Fidelity?

16       A.     No.

17       Q.     And did Fidelity send you any

18 documentation regarding BLMIS's market making

19 operations?

20       A.     I don't think so.

21       Q.     Do you know Henry Kaufman?

22       A.     I do.

23       Q.     How do you know Mr. Kaufman?

24       A.     How do I know Mr. Kaufman?  I know

25 Mr. Kaufman because he and his wife, for a
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1 period of decades, were very active in something

2 that related to a school for music and culture

3 generally on the west side of Manhattan, in a

4 school that my family has had an involvement

5 with for, must be half a century or 40 years,

6 something like that.  Meaning my parents,

7 myself, my siblings, my brother I think might

8 still be on the board.  So I knew him a little

9 bit from there.  And I knew him from going back

10 to his Solomon days a little bit.  We also had

11 additional friends in common.  One would have

12 been Leon Levy.

13       Q.     Did you ever speak to Mr. Kaufman

14 regarding BLMIS?

15       A.     Yes.

16       Q.     And when were those conversations?

17       A.     Can't say I remember specifically

18 when they were.

19       Q.     Do you recall whether it was prior

20 to your investments in BLMIS, so prior to 1990,

21 or was it later on?

22       A.     I certainly can't recall -- I

23 certainly can't recall with specific precision

24 that they were prior or else I would have

25 included them in the document.  So it must have
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1 failed some precision test of my own.  But it's

2 an older relationship, so it could have well

3 been back then as well.

4       Q.     Did you discuss -- do you know

5 whether or not Mr. Kaufman had any investments,

6 either personal or through family entities, with

7 BLMIS?

8       A.     I believe he did.

9       Q.     And was that the subject of your

10 conversation regarding BLMIS?

11       A.     It certainly came up.  I mean, it

12 wasn't the only part of it, but it came up.  He

13 had a gentleman who worked with him, whose name

14 I can't remember at the moment, and we had the

15 conversations in his office.

16       Q.     What was the nature of those

17 conversations?

18       A.     Where to invest, how to invest,

19 what kinds of returns he was looking for, what

20 kinds of risk he was willing to take, what kinds

21 of liquidity requirements he had.

22       Q.     And did you have any conversations

23 with Mr. Kaufman regarding due diligence on

24 BLMIS?

25       A.     I had conversations with him about
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1 Mr. Madoff.  I can't pinpoint them and say, this

2 is what the due diligence component of it was.

3       Q.     Do you have any -- do you have any

4 notes or other documentation regarding your

5 discussions with Mr. Kaufman on BLMIS?

6       A.     Not that I remember.

7       Q.     And do you know whether or not

8 Mr. Kaufman was ever called to testify in any of

9 the litigations, arbitrations, regarding your

10 investments in BLMIS?

11       A.     I don't know.

12       Q.     Do you know Norman Levy?

13       A.     I think I've been introduced to

14 him once or twice.  I don't know him.  He -- I

15 know I had perhaps a little bit of a -- he may

16 have been a small owner of the building in which

17 our office is, and we may have been paying him,

18 directly or indirectly, some rent.

19       Q.     Do you know whether Mr. Levy had

20 any investments with BLMIS?

21       A.     Only from newspaper accounts that

22 appeared subsequent to late 2008.

23       Q.     Did you have any discussions

24 with --

25       A.     Although, you know what, I can't
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1       A.     Yes, true.

2       Q.     Do you recall whether or not you

3 discussed Mr. Jesselson's investments with BLMIS

4 in your conversations with him?

5       A.     I'm sorry?  I just didn't -- you

6 just trailed off.  Say it again.

7              MR. STEINER:  Just to correct one

8 thing, you just said that Mr. Jesselson doesn't

9 appear on page 5, and he certainly does.

10              MR. SONG:  Oh, yes.

11       A.     Two Ludwigs.

12       Q.     Two Ludwigs.

13              Do you recall whether you

14 discussed Mr. Jesselson's investments with BLMIS

15 in your conversations?

16       A.     With Mr. Jesselson?

17       Q.     With Mr. Jesselson.

18       A.     I think I said he talked, when we

19 discussed Mr. Madoff, he talked as an investor

20 of Mr. Madoff would talk.  So it was clear to me

21 that he was an investor.  Whether it was him

22 personally or the family foundation, not sure it

23 would have made a big difference to me, and I

24 just don't remember which one it was.  And it

25 may have been another charity as well.
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1       Q.     And did Mr. Jesselson tell you

2 that he conducted due diligence on BLMIS?

3       A.     In those words, in those many

4 words, I don't remember.

5       Q.     And did Mr. Jesselson send you any

6 documents or materials regarding BLMIS?

7       A.     I don't think so.

8       Q.     Do you know Leon Levy?

9       A.     I did.

10       Q.     And who is Mr. Levy?

11       A.     Mr. Levy was one of the two

12 co-founders and principals at an entity called

13 Odyssey Partners LP.  And before that had had a

14 career at Oppenheimer & Company.

15       Q.     And did you have a relationship

16 with Mr. Levy?

17       A.     Yes.

18       Q.     How would you describe that

19 relationship?

20              Again, sir, if you could move your

21 hands away.

22       A.     Oh, sorry.

23              We were fairly close.  Leon is

24 somebody else I would put on the short list,

25 perhaps not on the scale of Mr. de Picciotto in
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1 other customers of Mr. Madoff.  Then we

2 discussed Mr. Jesselson, Mr. Gottesman and

3 Mr. Meyers.  And then it's other sophisticated

4 investors, including people who served on the

5 Yeshiva University investment committee.

6       A.     Um-hum.

7       Q.     Could you tell me who those other

8 sophisticated investors are?

9       A.     Well, surely Mr. Horowitz.  On the

10 YU investment committee, I would probably

11 include in that Morris Smith, Jonathan Kolatch.

12 Don't want to repeat names, so...

13              Those are the names that come to

14 mind at the moment.  I'm sure there are more,

15 but those are the ones that I remember at the

16 moment.

17       Q.     What do you recall discussing --

18 we've already covered Mr. Horowitz.  What do you

19 recall discussing with Mr. Smith?

20       A.     He was just present at YU

21 investment committees, either he or an entity

22 that he was related to were limited partners or

23 became limited partners in Ascot Partners LP,

24 probably as well as Gabriel, if I remember

25 correctly.  And I think it's possible his
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1 mother-in-law became an investor.  So it was

2 ongoing conversations.

3              The Ascot investment was a, not

4 necessarily every meeting but was a fairly

5 constant motif at YU investment committee

6 meetings.  I don't remember when Morris joined

7 the committee, but he was pretty diligent in

8 attendance, less diligent in attentiveness

9 because he was constantly on his phone.  You

10 know, he was constantly emailing throughout the

11 meetings.  But he came.  Morris worked at my

12 office for a period of years and a lot of the

13 meetings were in my office.

14              So Madoff came up and Morris was a

15 fan.  Morris was a fan of Ascot generally.

16 Ascot was, some of that would -- Gedale always

17 asked about, Mr. Gottesman asked about, came up,

18 conversations and so forth.  Also as I've

19 previously alluded to Mr. Madoff became

20 something of a figure at Yeshiva University

21 board, chairman of the business school, officer

22 of the board when he became the treasurer, and

23 the executive committee, which was only eight or

24 nine people, included him.

25       Q.     Still on page 5, if you go to the
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1       Q.     You're not aware of a direct

2 investment with BLMIS?

3       A.     I'm not aware of one but I would

4 not necessarily be aware of one.

5       Q.     And what were the circumstances

6 related to the meeting that you set up between

7 Mr. Bravmann and Mr. Madoff?

8       A.     Don't remember.

9       Q.     Do you recall what time frame this

10 was in?

11       A.     No.

12       Q.     Did you attend that meeting?

13       A.     I don't remember.

14       Q.     Did you have -- did you take any

15 notes of that meeting?

16       A.     I don't remember.

17       Q.     And do you know if you have any

18 documentation at all evidencing this meeting?

19       A.     Did we produce any, may I ask?

20       Q.     Would you have had an email, say,

21 with Mr. Bravmann setting up the meeting?

22       A.     I might have.  I don't know.  I

23 would not testify that we didn't but I don't --

24 I don't know that that's the way it would have

25 happened.  It may have just been telephone calls
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1 name after Christof Reichmuth, so to take those

2 three names together rather than two names

3 together...

4       Q.     Sure.

5       A.     ...worked.

6       Q.     Did there come a time when you set

7 up a meeting between Mr. Reichmuth, Mr. Hackel

8 and Mr. Madoff?

9       A.     I set up meetings for Mr. Hackel,

10 I set up meetings for Mr. Reichmuth, I set up

11 meetings for Mr. Erne.  I don't know at which

12 meetings the two of them might have overlapped.

13       Q.     Did -- I want to start with

14 Mr. Reichmuth.  Do you recall when you set up

15 the meeting for Mr. Reichmuth?

16       A.     Christof?

17       Q.     Yes.

18       A.     This would have probably been not

19 that long after Reichmuth & Company was started

20 by his father.  So early in the period we're

21 talking about, but I don't remember when.

22       Q.     Does the late 1990s sound correct

23 to you?

24       A.     That's early in the period we're

25 talking about, so I can't remember exactly when.
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1 I would have conjectured 2000 but, you know,

2 it's not a different -- not a completely

3 different answer.

4       Q.     Do you recall attending the

5 meeting with Mr. Reichmuth and Mr. Madoff?

6       A.     I recall attending meetings at

7 Mr. Madoff's office with various members of the

8 Reichmuth staff.  I'm not sure I remember this

9 one specifically.

10       Q.     Okay.  Do you recall what the

11 purposes were of the -- do you recall what the

12 purposes of the meeting between Mr. Reichmuth

13 and Mr. Madoff were?

14       A.     Broadly speaking, Reichmuth &

15 Company had money management clients, of which

16 possibly Mr. Hackel was one and then had a whole

17 series of clients who I didn't know, and they

18 had -- over a period of time were in the process

19 of setting up at least one and probably two what

20 became fairly large fund of funds.

21              In the first one, chronologically,

22 they had a very large position relative to the

23 size of the fund in Ascot Fund Limited.

24       Q.     Did you ever tell Mr. Reichmuth

25 that BLMIS only acted as a broker for Ascot
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1 Fund?

2       A.     No.

3       Q.     Do you recall how many meetings

4 you set up between Mr. Reichmuth and Mr. Madoff?

5 Mr. Christof Reichmuth.

6       A.     No.

7       Q.     Was it more than one?

8       A.     Could very well be.

9       Q.     Did you ever disclose to

10 Mr. Christof Reichmuth that Ariel had capital

11 invested with BLMIS?

12       A.     To Christof specifically?

13       Q.     Yes.

14       A.     I don't remember a specific

15 conversation with Christof.

16       Q.     Okay.  Do you recall setting up a

17 meeting for Mr. Patrick Erne and Mr. Madoff in

18 October of 2007?

19       A.     Sounds right.

20       Q.     Do you know if Mr. Matlin attended

21 that meeting?

22       A.     I believe he did.

23       Q.     And do you recall anybody else

24 that attended that meeting?

25       A.     Me.
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1       Q.     Anybody else from GCC?

2       A.     Don't think so.  I don't remember,

3 but -- not that I remember.

4       Q.     Why was this meeting arranged?

5       A.     I'm sorry?

6       Q.     Why was the meeting arranged?

7       A.     At some point I guess both Michael

8 and Patrick had asked for a meeting with

9 Mr. Madoff, and -- Patrick was not here that

10 often.  He used to swing around about three

11 times to year to visit managers, and so I asked

12 Bernie if it was okay to sort of basically

13 double up and to save wear and tear all around,

14 come to his office with two different investors

15 who had no relation with each other.

16       Q.     So was the meeting -- did

17 Mr. Madoff meet with both Mr. Erne and

18 Mr. Matlin simultaneously?

19       A.     It was one meeting.

20       Q.     It was one meeting.  And all four

21 of you were together at the meeting?

22       A.     Correct.

23       Q.     Do you have any specific

24 recollection of what was discussed?

25       A.     I think we started from scratch
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1 and went over the, whatever the strategy was at

2 the time, the strategy we've talked about.  Lots

3 of questions were asked, questions were

4 answered.  I don't think any questions were

5 declined that I can remember.  And I think both

6 Patrick and Michael were actually rather

7 thankful for the meeting because I think I

8 remember getting emails saying thank you so much

9 for setting it up and how, if not in this word,

10 in this sense how illuminating it was, or how

11 much light it shed on, you know, things that

12 they had already known but had perhaps a fuller

13 understanding of or a broader understanding of

14 and so forth.

15       Q.     And those were emails from both

16 Mr. Erne and Mr. Matlin?

17       A.     It might have been one email and

18 one phone call, I'm just not quite sure.

19       Q.     Did you take any notes of this

20 meeting?

21       A.     I don't remember.

22       Q.     Was this the only meeting that you

23 arranged on behalf of Mr. Matlin and Mr. Madoff?

24       A.     Might have been.  I'm not sure.

25       Q.     Do you recall whether or not
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1       A.     With Mr. Madoff?

2       Q.     Yes.

3       A.     I'm sorry.  What was the question?

4       Q.     At the meeting in October of 2007

5 with Mr. Erne, Mr. Matlin and Mr. Madoff, did

6 you discuss Ariel's investment with BLMIS, or

7 was it just an overall discussion on Mr.

8 Madoff's strategy?

9       A.     It was surely the latter, okay,

10 about the -- yes, it was a discussion of the

11 strategy.  They were there to meet Mr. Madoff,

12 not to meet me.  If I remember correctly, I

13 think I had a meeting with one of them

14 immediately before or immediately after, but it

15 was on the same day.  I think they met in my

16 office and -- we met in my office and then we

17 walked over to Third Avenue immediately

18 following the meeting with me and then had the

19 meeting with Bernie.  That would probably have

20 been with Patrick.  And then had the meeting

21 with Bernie.

22       Q.     And prior to December of 2008, did

23 you ever tell Mr. Erne that Ariel was invested

24 with BLMIS?

25       A.     I don't remember a specific
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1 vaguest memory that she either was a compliance

2 person or perhaps a legal person, but that

3 doesn't mean she didn't function within the risk

4 review group.

5       Q.     All right.

6       A.     If people who went on a due

7 diligence visit, to your way of asking

8 questions, by definition are part of a risk

9 review, then maybe they are.  That depends how

10 you think about the relationship between due

11 diligence and risk.  Then I would say she

12 probably was part of that because she went on

13 due diligence visits.

14       Q.     Okay.

15       A.     But I don't know what her --

16       Q.     You don't know what her job title

17 is?

18       A.     Correct.

19       Q.     Or what her role is at UBP?

20       A.     I certainly don't know what her

21 job title is.  I know enough about her role to

22 say -- and it's not very much -- to say that she

23 was part of a due diligence review.

24       Q.     Do you recall setting -- arranging

25 a meeting between Mr. Igolnikov and Mr. Madoff
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1 in early 2004?

2       A.     Not specifically, no.

3       Q.     Let me get, Oleg, 133 and 134.

4              (Exhibits Trustee 370 and Trustee

5 371 marked for identification.)

6       Q.     Mr. Merkin, the court reporter has

7 handed you what's been marked as Trustee's

8 Exhibit 370, which is UBPAMMERKIN00000004.

9       A.     Um-hum.

10       Q.     And Trustee Exhibit 371, which is

11 Bates number GCC-P 0152946.  And we're going to

12 start with 370.

13       A.     Okay.

14       Q.     Do you recognize Trustee's 370?

15       A.     Well, this looks like it's an

16 email from Roman Igolnikov to me in February of

17 2004.  Assuming that his email system spells his

18 name correctly, it looks like we did not spell

19 it correctly on page 5, first full paragraph.

20       Q.     And what is Mr. Igolnikov -- what

21 is the subject of this email?

22       A.     I assume it starts from the

23 bottom?

24       Q.     Yes.

25       A.     So he's asking me, consistent with
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1 It sounds like he may otherwise have had some

2 difficulty in doing so from the third sentence,

3 and was appreciative of the access and of the

4 meeting.

5       Q.     To your understanding was this the

6 first time Mr. Igolnikov met with Mr. Madoff?

7       A.     I don't remember, if I knew.

8       Q.     Do you recall -- did you attend

9 that meeting between Mr. Igolnikov and

10 Mr. Madoff?

11       A.     I don't remember.

12       Q.     Did Mr. Igolnikov ask to bring

13 anyone with him to the meeting?

14       A.     I don't remember.

15       Q.     Did you ever tell Mr. Igolnikov

16 that BLMIS does not take visitors?

17       A.     Did I ever tell that to Roman?

18       Q.     Yes.

19       A.     While setting up a meeting?

20       Q.     Yes.

21       A.     No.

22       Q.     Did you tell Mr. Igolnikov that it

23 was a big deal for you to take him to see

24 Mr. Madoff?

25       A.     No.  Certainly not that I
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1 not they knew of the Madoff involvement in

2 Ascot, and whether they knew about the Madoff

3 involvement in Ariel.

4       Q.     Yes.

5       A.     If they knew of the Madoff

6 involvement in Ascot, in my opinion, is a fact.

7 I think it's more likely than not that they knew

8 of the involvement in Ariel.  My level of

9 conviction there is not as high as it was or is

10 on the Ascot piece, and we did not challenge

11 them on Ariel.  We challenged them only on Ascot

12 for that reason.

13       Q.     And you're referring to some sort

14 of litigation between you and Reichmuth &

15 Company?

16       A.     Yes.

17       Q.     Mr. Merkin, do you recall

18 yesterday you referred to an accounting firm

19 called Avellino & Bienes?

20       A.     Yes.

21       Q.     And Avellino & Bienes was the

22 subject of several news articles that you kept

23 in your Madoff file, correct?

24       A.     I don't know how many, but yes.

25       Q.     Other than those articles, did you
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1 have any other source of information regarding

2 Avellino & Bienes?

3       A.     Other than a discussion with

4 Mr. Madoff about them, no.

5       Q.     And what was --

6       A.     In addition to that I'm saying, in

7 addition to the articles I had conversations

8 with Bernie about them, but that was it.

9       Q.     And what was your discussions with

10 Mr. Madoff about it?

11       A.     He kind of said, yeah, it was me

12 and them.  I didn't know anything about Avellino

13 & Bienes until I read the first of the articles

14 that I read, which was the Wall Street Journal

15 article, and it was already over.

16       Q.     And did you and Mr. Madoff discuss

17 the subsequent SEC investigation of Avellino &

18 Bienes?

19       A.     I don't know if it was subsequent.

20 That is, I have to go back and read the Journal

21 article and see whether that was written only

22 after the SEC investigation was over.  I doubt

23 it, but I just don't remember the sequence.

24       Q.     Take out the word "subsequent."

25 Did you have a conversation with Mr. Madoff
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1 regarding an SEC investigation into Avellino &

2 Bienes?

3       A.     There's a reference to the SEC

4 investigation in that article.  And Richard

5 Walker, who was the regional administrator in

6 New York at the SEC at that time, is quoted.  I

7 don't remember exactly what he says in that

8 quote, because I don't remember the article that

9 well, but I believe he is named or maybe he's

10 just referred to and there's not a quote in

11 quotations.  I just don't remember it that

12 clearly.

13              But we discussed the article and

14 we may have discussed Richard Walker, in which

15 case the answer to your question did we discuss

16 anything about the SEC would have been yes.  If

17 we didn't bring up Richard Walker, I don't

18 remember otherwise a discussion about the SEC.

19       Q.     How often would you talk about the

20 SEC with Mr. Madoff?

21       A.     I don't know.

22       Q.     In your 10 to 15 conversations per

23 year, do you recall whether you had a

24 conversation once or twice per year or was it

25 one time in your entire, the entire span of your
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CONFIDENTIAL

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

ln re:

BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT
SECURITIES LLC,

Debtor

IRVING H. PICARD, Trustee for the Liquidarion
of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC,

Plaintift

J. EZRA MERKIN, GABRIEL CAPITAL, L.P.,
ARIEL FUND LTD., ASCOT PARTNERS, L.P.,
ASCOT FUND LTD., GABRIEL CAPITAL
CORPORATION,

Defendants.

X

SIPA LIQUIDATION

No, 08-01789 (SMB)

Adv. Proc. No. 09-01I S2 (SMB)

X

X

V

Expert Report of Jeffrey M. Weingarten

I. Scope of Assignment

If called as an expeft to testify in this action, I anticipate that my testimony would concern the
matters addressed in this repoft, the opinions that I have formed, and the materials that I have
relied upon in forming my opinions, Furthermore, I anticipate that my testimony would also
address any response or rebuttal by any experts testifying on behalf of the Trusiee.

II. Background and Qualifications

My background includes over 40 years of education and experience in finance, investment
research, fund management and investing.

I received a BS Economics from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylv aniain 1970.
Immediately upon graduation, I worked as a securities analyst for Scheinman, Htchstin & Trotta
and then wertheim & co, until I joined Goldrnan sachs in 1977.
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My career at Goldman Sachs included tenure in the US research department both as an analyst
and in charge of recruiting and training. I then went to work in London as head of International
Equity Research and a Global Investment Strategist, Shortly after becoming a Partner in 1990, I
became CEO of Goldman Sachs Asset Management International and Chief Investment Officer
of Global Equities. ln 1996, I again became a Global Investment Strategist.

I retired as a GeneralPartner in 1998 to form Buttonwood Capital Partners, a fund management
company that ran European equity hedge funds. I ran that company and those funds until 2008.

After retiring from the hedge fund business, I became a consultant and later Chairman of
Grosvenor Fund Management, a property fund management business based in London. With the
retirement of the CEO, I took on those responsibilities on an interirn basis from 2011 to 2013. I
am currently on the Board of Grosvenor Group Limited and on the Board of Aviva Investors.
From 2010 to 2074,I also served on the foundation Board of the College of Charleston and on its
Finance and Investment Committees.

In the course of my career,I have performed due diligence on companies, investment managers
and of course had due diligence performed on me and the many funds which I managed.
A copy of my curriculum vitae is attached at Exhibit A.

III. Materials Considered

In forming my opinions, I considered and relied on my forty year experience analyzing
investments and twenty-plus years as a hedge fund manager. In addition, I relied on knowledge
of investlnent fund prospectuses and performance data accumulated over the course of my
career. Further, I considered the documents and testimony listed on Exhibit B.

IV. Compensation

I arn being compensated at a rate of $800 per hour. My fee is neither contingent on the outcome
of this matter nor on the opinions provided herein. A list of all cases in the last four years in
which I have provided expert testimony, either in deposition or at trial, is attached at Exhibit C.

V. Summary of Conclusions

Having been retained to opine on the adequacy of the due diligence on Bernard Madoff and his
organization, Bernard L. Madoff lnvestment Securities ("BLMIS") (collectively "Madoff'), I
have reached the conclusion that the due diligence performed by J. EzraMerkin and Gabriel
Capital Corporation (collectively 'oMerkin Defendants") met or exceeded industry standards.
The due diligence performed considered and evaluated all of the relevant investment factors
normally associated with a money manager including: Investment Philosophy, Process and
Procedures. Mr. Merkin also carefully considered the People involved in generating the
investment returns and whether or not those returns were proportional to both the level of
expected returns and the amount of risk incurred. This due diligence process was undertaken on
an ongoing basis throughout the time of Gabriel Capital, L.P.'s, Ariel Fund Limited's, Ascot
Partners, L.P.'s and Ascot Fund Limited's (collectively, the "Funds") investment with Madoff.
Moreover, Mr. Merkin was aware that various regulators, auditors, administrators, and

CONFIDENTIAL
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sophisticated institutional and individual investors were also looking at many of these factors and
reached the conclusion that nothing was untoward about the activities in which Madoff was
purportedly engaged. With the benefit of hindsight, much has been made about a lack of due

diligence, when, in reality, this was a very elaborate fraud spanning decades that was never
uncovered by a myriad of agencies, auditors, regulators and sophisticated investors.

As I will discuss below, there is no precise formula or written rules for adequate due diligence.
Over the many years during which I have performed or been the subject of such reviews, it is
clear that certain information about prospective investments need to be adequately obtained and
verified.

In my experience, due diligence has been done in a wide variety of ways and included a wide
variety of information, and, particularly in the area of hedge funds, has changed over the years,
most notably since the collapse of Lehman Brothers and the revelation of Madofls fraud in
2008. Due diligence has run the gamut from lengthy (as many as 20 page) questionnaires at one
extreme to as little as a fairly brief conversation with minimal, if any, written rnaterials at the
other. Some involved several face-to-face meetings and others just a single telephone
conversation orjust the sending ofa prospectus.

Adequate due diligence of an investment manager, in my opinion, with many years of experience
in this regard, involves the determination of the five following characteristics: Philosophy, what
is the manager trying to achieve in his strategy; Process, how does the manager go about the
strategy; Procedures, how is the process executed; People, who is the principal for executing the
investment strategy and what is his background and reputation; and finally Performance, what
have been the investment returns and are those returns consistent with the strategy,

In my opinion, Mr, Merkin obtained and reinforced all of this information over the years in
which the Funds invested with Madoff. All of this was in various degrees documented in Mr.
Merkin's files and notes.

It is very clear that Mr. Merkin had a clear understanding of the investment Philosophy of Mr.
Madoff and his investment advisory operations. There were notes in Mr. Merkin's files from
others who invested in this strategy and there were conversations which reinforced the notion
that Madoff was investing to achieve good returns (better than T-bill returns) with substantially
below average risk. Mr. Merkin's notes referenced Mr. Madoffls objective to achieve capital
appreciation within a defined risk parameter. It is also clear that the philosophy would forgo
potential higher profit opportunities in order to avoid risk of loss. For example, being out of the
market around highly volatile periods during which options expire would be part of the
philosophy. This is a strategy to which many market practitioners adhere. It is clear that the
philosophy of preventing risk of loss was more important than the reach for gain.

The Process by which this investment philosophy was to be achieved was the Split Strike
Conversion strategy but with added "benefits". The Split Strike Conversion strategy is
adequately described elsewhere so I will not discuss it here except to say that the process is
consistent with the philosophy of reduced risk. The "with benefits" part of the process was
understood to be how the majority of the returns were to be generated. It is clear from the

3
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documents and testimony I have reviewed that Mr, Merkin understood that Madoff had the
ability to predict short-term trends in the market as a result of a proprietary model and access to
order flow. Mr. Merkin understood that Mr. Madoff had, by virtue of his long experience, the
knowledge and ability to take advantage of both market timing and stock selection to improve
returns over that which would have been generated by a formulaic putting on of the trades.

The Process was consistent with the philosophy in that the Split Strike Conversion strategy was a
risk controlled strategy and the knowledge and ability of Mr. Madoff could permit returns to be
generated above what an ordinary "dumb" Split Strike Conversion strategy would generate. It
was, as others have described, a relatively simple process, but one that could and would be
executed in an uncommon way.

The Procedures \ryere also clearly and transparently (or so Mr. Merkin had reason to believe)
adhered to. The Merkin Defendants continually received both literal and figurative
confirmations. Although, in my experience, it is almost never the case that an investor can
access and scrutinize the individual trades of any manager, the information about the trades that
Madoff purpofted to have done was available. This made Madofls procedure, in my opinion,
more transparent than that of a typical fund manager. Although we now know that these were
fabricated, almost no amount of due diligence at the time would have made that obvious. Others,
including the SEC and many other investors, had looked over the procedures and found no fault
with them.

Consistent with good due diligence practice, on several occasions, Mr. Merkin reviewed both
Process and Procedures with Madoff. I noted that Mr. Merkin had regular meetings and calls
with Mr. Madoff and documented many of those reviews and updates in his file.

It was clear from the outset that Mr. Merkin knew the People who were going to do the
investing. Mr. Madoff was well known to Mr. Merkin because of a long-¡erm relationship with
his business-dating back to the early 1990s-and Mr. Madoff was well known to the finance
community at large. He was widely reputed to be a pioneer in his field and had of course been
the Chairman of NASDAQ. He was the vice-chairman and a member of the board of governors
of the NASD. He had a joint venture with the most reputable Wall Street firms, Goldman Sachs
and Merrill Lynch, to develop a trading system as an alternative to the New York Stock
Exchange, which Mr. Merkin noted with articles in his file. What is more important from a due
diligence perspective is that Mr. Merkin knew that Mr. Madofls experience ånd reputation was
entirely consistent with what he was being asked to do from a fund manager's perspective. Mr.
Madoff knew the markets and understood how information regarding "flow" could-be put to
good use in managing money. In my opinion, the People part of the due diligence proóess is
critical. ln knowing what he knew about Mr. Madoff, Mr. Merkin had everyreason to believe
that he was highly reputable, highly regarded and had direct and relevant experience in managing
money in precisely the manner in which he intended to do.

The Performance datathatwas available as part of the initial and ongoing due diligence process
was both reasonable relative to the mandate in the aggre gate and consistent with the philosophy,
Process and Procedures outlined above. The returns were not volatile and better than would be
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expected from a typical Split Strike Conversion strategy. When the market was down, the fund
outperformed the overall market. When the market was up sharply, the fund underperformed.

Much has been made afÍer the fact that the returns achieved by Madoff were too good. That of
course is easy to say now. The after-the-fact logic is that the returns were not consistent with the
low volatility. It is clear that these returns were uncommon, but why would anyone invest with
someone who had common returns? Although uncommon, in my experience, these returns \ryere

not implausible. Over the course of my career, I have seen many reports comparing fund
managers and observed many fund managers' results where the returns were high and volatility
was proportionately low, The oft referred to Sharpe ratio was relatively high for Madoff, but I
have counted many funds with very high Sharpe ratios (return per unit of volatility). Madoffls
results were above average, yes, but certainly they were achievable.

Another, but absolutely critical, part of the due diligence process was the determination that the
performance was realizable. By that I mean could you get your money back. Without question,
from the evidence in the Merkin Defendants' files, until December I 1, 2008, Madoff was always
able to meet redemption requests on time and in the full amount. Based on this redemption
history, there would have been no reason to doubt that the performance as depicted was real or
that the funds that were invested were actually there. For example, Mr. Merkin knew that in
1992,Madoff met a5440 million redemption without hesitation, following an investigation by
the SEC against third parties who had invested the funds with Madoff. Mr. Merkin retained a
copy of the news article about that investigation and Madofls prompt return of the investor
funds in his file. It is also worth noting that in connection with that government investigation
Mr, Madoff was not charged with any wrongdoing.

Although not usually part of the formal due diligence I performed, I often applied the plausibility
rule' Is it plausible that these people doing this process in this way could achieve thesè results?
It would appear from all the documents made available to me that the Merkin Defendants at the
time believed this, and that reasonable belief was reinforced repeatedly over many years.
Madoff s "plausibility" would also be reinforced because Mr. Merkin knew that many other
highly sophisticated and experienced investors were clients of Madoff. As former chairman of
the SEC, Harvey Pitt said, "there were a lot of people who were duped and that happens a great
dealwhen you've had somebody decide to be unscrupulous.',

It is clear now that this was a very elaborate fraud involving many people capable of avoiding
detection by many organizations for many years. In my opinion, the Merkin Defendants
performed more than adequate due diligence on Mr. Madoff and his organization. They
adequately understood the investment Philosophy; they understood and carefully examined the
Process; had transparent knowledge of the Procedures; and knew Mr. Madoff both personally
and by reputation. The Performance, both in terms of the results and in terms of reálizing thó
cash from those results were entirely consistent. Moreover, this due diligence was not a one off
event but was continued through the life of the Funds' investments.

5
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Vn. Conclusion

Taken on the whole, the Merkin Defendants. in my opinion, pwsued what would certainly be
described as adequate due diligence on Madof[ his investrnent sttategy and his operations. The
due cliligence process was tìrorough in its construct dealing with the key issues of Philosophy,
Process, Procedures, People and Perf'onnance. This diligence was both ongoing and broad.
Questions that were raised .ivere all addressed.

Indeed, no one found sufÏicient issue with Mr.. Madoff to bring him any form ofjustice. He
turned

15
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Education

1970

Work Experience

1970-1971

1971-1977

1977-1987

1 987-1 991

1 990-1 998

1991-1997

1 997-1 998

1 999-2008

Awards and Honors

1 976-1 986

1977-1986

1 989-1 991

Other lnterests

1 998 to 2005

1995 to 2005

2004 to present

2009 to present

2009 to present

2010 to 2014

2015 to present
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JEFFREY M. WEINGARTEN

BS Economics with Honors
The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania

Securities Analyst Sheinman, Hochstin & Trotta
New York

Securities Analyst Tobacco & Beverages, Wertheim & Co
New York

Food Beverage and Tobacco Analyst, Goldman Sachs
Director of Recruiting and Training for Research Company
New York

Director of lnternational Equity Research, Goldman Sachs
Global I nvestment Strategist
London

Partner, Goldman Sachs

CEO Goldman Sachs Asset Management lnternational
CIO Goldman Sachs Asset Management lnternational Equities

Global lnvestment Strategist, Goldman Sachs

Founder and Managing Director, Buttonwood Capital partners

lnstitutíonal lnvestor #1 Tobacco Analyst

lnstitutional lnvestor #2 - #3 Beverage Analyst

lnstitutíonal lnvestor #3 lnvestment Global Strategist

The wharton school of the university of Pennsylvania Advisory Board

Development Council National Theatr

Student Disability Services Advisory Board at the University of Pennsylvania

ConsultanVChairman of Grosvenor Fund Management/Member of Grosvenor
Group Ltd. Board

Member, Board of Advisors, school of Languages, cultures, and world Affairs
at the College of Charleston

Member, Foundation Board, College of Charleston

Non-executive Director of Aviva lnvestors
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Jeffrey M. Weingarten

Jeffrey M. Weingarten has almost 40 years of investment experience in investment
research and fund management.

Jeffrey began his career as a securities analyst at Sheinman Hochstein & Trotta from
1970-1971 moving to Wertheim & Co from 1971-1977 as a securities analyst and
Vice President. ln 1977 hejoined the research division at Goldman Sachs & Co in
New York and over the next ten years was voted lnstitutional lnvestor's top tobacco
and beverage analyst in the US. ln 1987 he became Director of Research in London
responsible for all non-US research activities as well as the lnternational Portfolio
strategist. He became a general partner of Goldman sachs & Co in 1990. From
1991-1997 Jeffrey was the Chief lnvestment Officer and Managing Director of
Goldman sachs Asset Management lnternational. ln 1997 he returned to
lnternational Equity Research as the Global Strategist and retired as a General
Partner in order to form Buttonwood in 1998.

Buttonwood was principally a European long short equity fund which produced
superior returns for almost 10 years. During that time Buttonwood Fund
outperformed the European lndex almost three times with much less volatility,

Jeffrey holds a BS Economics cum laude from The Wharton School, University of
Pennsylvania, is a Cerlified FinancialAnalyst and was a member of the New Vork
society of security Analysts and lnternational lnvestment Analysts Group,

Jeffrey was a board member of the wharton Executive Board for EMEA, board
member of the Student Disability Services Advisory Board at the University of
Pennsylvania and Chairman of Grosvenor Fund Management in London. tte is also
on the Board of Advisors, School of Languages, Cultures, and World Affairs at the
College of Charleston and was a member of the Foundation Board of the College.

Jeffrey is a director of Grosvenor Group Ltd. and a director of Aviva lnvestors,
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JEFFREY M. WEINGARTEN
DOCUMENTS CONSIDERED

Third Amended Complaint in this action
Complaints hled by Picard in other actions including, Picard v. ABN Amro Bank N.V. et, al.,
Adv. Pro. No. 10-05354 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y.), Picard v. Citibank N,A. et. al,, Adv. Pro. No, 10-
05345 (Bankr. S.D.N,Y.), Picard v. Defender Limited et. al., Adv. Pro. No. l0-05229 (Bankr.
S.D.N.Y.), Picardv. Natixis et, al., Adv. Pro. No. 10-05353, and Picardv. Nomura Bank
International PLC et. al., Adv, Pro. No. l0-05348 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y.).
Merkin's file on Madoff
Audio files produced by Defendants
Emails produced by Defendants
Trade confirmations and monthly statements from Madoff
PMS data
Excel file on Madoff Investment History
Transcript of Autera Testimony in this action (individualand as 30(bX6) designee)
Transcript of Merkin Testimony in this action
Transcript of Merkin Testimony in NYAG litigation
Transcript of Merkin Testimony in NYU litigation
November 7,2005 Submission to the SEC by Harry Markopoulos
August 31 , 2009 Report by the S EC Office of the Inspector General
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Exhibit C
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JEFFREY M. WEINGARTEN
DEPOSITION, TRIAL AND ARBIRATON TESTIMONY

IN THE PAST FOUR YEARS

Case Name Date(s) Testimonv Type
Born et. al, v. Merkin,
ArbitrationNo. l3 148 Y
01799 10

July 19, 20l l Arbitration Testimony

Mas s achusetts Mutual Life
Insurance Company, et al. v.

Certain Underwriters at
Lloyd's of London Subscribing
to Bond Nos.
80391/FD020720G AND
8039 1 /FD0207 30G, et al.,
C.A. No. N10C-l l-219 FSS
CCLD

August 21,2014 Deposition Testimony
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SECURITES LLC,

Debtor X

STPA LIQUIDATION

No. 08-01789 (SMB)

Adv, Proc. No. 09-011S2 (SMB)

IRVING H. PICARD, Trusree for the Liquidation
of Bernard L, Madoff Investment Securities LLC,

Plaintifl

v

x

09-01182-smb    Doc 337-7    Filed 04/07/17    Entered 04/07/17 18:01:36    Exhibit 6   
 Pg 2 of 6



I. Scope of Assignment

I have considered the tnitial Expert Witness Report of Dr. Steve Pomerantz. If called as an
expert to testify in this matter, in addition to the opinions expressed in my initial Expert Report,
and as noted in that report, I anticipate that my testimony wôuld include a rebuttal tå tne opinions
offered by Dr. Pomerantz.

II. Materials Considered

In forming my opinions, in addition to the experience and materials relied on in my initial Expert
Report, I considered and relied on Dr. Pomerantz's Initial Expert Report and certain of the

2001 due diligence questionnaires
Association ("AIMA") as well as the book

III. Summary of Conclusions

I disagree with the firndamental premise on which the report by Dr. pomerantz was founded.
What is porhayed by Dr' Pomerantz was not even close io the customary standard of Due

the important fact that
ssues that previously
issues that were not

s referred to in the report. Almost none of the
antz was routine before Madoff himself went

Moreover, most of what was written in the report as "concerns" \ryere well covered by the manya¡ticles written after the faot and indeed were even raised contemporaneously. These conce¡¡s
include, for example, the issue of BLMIS's accounting firm, the fact that ronfi*, were manual,

blically known and discussed at the time and did
rs from investing with Madoff, It is worth

egulators charged with oversight of Madofps
had much greater access to infonnation than
er have had.

Another fimdamentalluy in the,logic sugge that the only
possible explanation fr th9 results allegedly This is clearly
NOT the only possibilify. Most investors, in _ that there often
were s rike conversion strategy and these time lapses
would
a simu iJli;.f;ie 

results that would have resulted from
after

the fact forensic accountants and experts try ng onthe assumption that all the hades were done g the
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sale of calls would be sufficient to achieve the results. Madoff was thought by many to have not
only an ability to time the markets but had access to flow of fimds inforrãatioå, which would
have been beneficial to aehieving these results. This access would not necessa¡ily have been the
result of nor caused by front running since the knowledge would have been general flows and did
not necessarily result ftom running in front of client traáes.

As is almost always true in the investment world, there will be more views on thc
appropriateness and the desirability of an investment strategy than there are investors making
that determination' Many looked at Madoff s record and r{ected it for any nu-u., of reasons.

ated investors knowing the same facts as those
igence conducted by these investors varied
level of Due Diligence suggested by Dr.

Pomerantz, althoughwith the perfect hindsight we now all possess woulãhave been preferable,
was not at that time the industry standard in numerous respðcts, For example, the AIMA
guidelines issued n 1997 and reiterated in 2001 referenceà by Dr. pomerantz do not mention

Travers' book. Similarly, extensive review of reported
fact by Dr. Pomeranlz,wasnot indicated in eittrei the

Industrv Standard Duç Diligenæ

As I indicated in my initial Expert Report induslry standard due diligence is something of amisnomet in that the¡e was very wide variation ioit*ti... Most indlusty,,stanãards,, revorved
ophy,.process, people, performance and ultimately
t wording, there does not appeæ to be fundamental
me on this approach,

Philosophy

It does not appear to be disputed that Mr. Merkin understood that he was investing with Madoffto achieve better than t-bill returns with substantially below uu..ug. risk. It was clear to Mr.
, or could be, the cost of avoiding volatility.
that Madoff might be out of the market af

often occurred around the end ofthe quarter
ing was critical to both the initial and 

-ongoing

Process a$d Proqedures

Several issues Pomerantz regarding the Process and procedures, againall with the be and again mo-st of ñhi.h *.r. known concems at thetime when Mr investors I re already investing with Madoff

J
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Among the issues raised was the use of written confi¡mations. But written confirmations \ryere
not unusual at the time the Funds first began investing with Mr. Madoffl, Even at the time I was
running a hedge fund in 2007,I was still receiving w¡itten and faxed confirmation from broke¡s.

Peqple

The reputation and qualification of the percon or people doing the investing is critical to the Due
Diligence process' To suggest otherwiie is not only èoooeouL, it flies in tñe face of,standard
i"dutt.y practice both before and afrer Madoff s fráud was uncovered. Indeed, in his book on
hedge firnds, Mr. Travers attaohes 30% of the Due Diligence weight to the Investment
Professionals, the highest weight of any other factor!

just by nafire of the
dollars with no

own. To suggest otherwiso is at best naiVe and

In the case of Madoff, Mr' Merkin had a long history of both famitial and business relationships
before investing. That ongoing relationship õontinued tluoughout the investing period.,

leader.and prominent fìg're in the investing community
Due Diligence fo¡ many at the time and indeed wourd be a
n any Due Diligence conducted even today.

Performance

in Bloomberg
the Eclectica
had mo¡e

4
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As indicated above, several of the sources used by Dr. Pomerantzprovide guides fo¡ what
standardDue Diligence looked like at the time tr4r. Merkin wa, ,oodu.tinfbottr initial and
gngoing Due Diligence. None of these even suggest forensics that
Dr. Pomerantz suggested was standard, While these ble, they
were certainly not standard. What has been done by fairly 

'
standard after the fact examination of infoln{ion tirat, when you know the outcome, would leadyou to oonclude that the outcome was possibly a fraud. It is proving what we tnow to be ¡'ue.

regulators having investigated and
ence, including sophisticated investors

orate fraud eluded public detection fôr many
done is relatively easy. Madoff in the end

himself in.

IV. Conclusion

2015
J

5
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From: Tulchin, Matthew T 
To: Kitchen, David E.; Powers, Marc; Colombo, Louis; neil.steiner@dechert.com; jonathan.perry@dechert.com;  

lgotthoffer@reedsmith.com; claffey@reedsmith.com; Hirschfield, Marc E. 
Cc: Pitofsky, David 
Subject: First Set of Document Requests to Madoff Trustee.pdf - Adobe Acrobat Professional 
Date: Friday, January 14, 2011 9:16:30 PM 
Attachments: First Set of Document Requests to Madoff Trustee.pdf 

 
 

 
Counsel: 

 
On behalf of David B. Pitofsky, Receiver for Ascot Partners, L.P., 
attached is Defendant Ascot Partners' First Set of Requests for 
Documents and Things.  As stated during the parties' December 21, 2010 
Meet and Confer, we do not possess any information to disclose at this 
time. 

 
Respectfully, 

 
Matthew Tulchin 
Goodwin Procter LLP 
The New York Times Building 
620 Eighth Avenue 
New York, NY. 10018-1405 
T: 212-459-7252 
F: 212-355-3333 
mtulchin@goodwinprocter.com 
www.goodwinprocter.com 

 
 
 
 
 

******************************************************************* 
IRS CIRCULAR 230 DISCLOSURE: 
To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we 
inform 
you that any U.S. tax advice contained in this communication 
(including any attachments) is not intended or written to be used, 
and 
cannot be used, for the purpose of (i) avoiding penalties under 
the 
Internal Revenue Code or (ii) promoting, marketing or recommending 
to 
another party any transaction or matter addressed herein. 
******************************************************************* 

 
******************************************************************* 
This message is intended only for the designated recipient(s).  It 
may 
contain confidential or proprietary information and may be subject 
to 
the attorney-client privilege or other confidentiality 
protections. 
If you are not a designated recipient, you may not review, copy or 
distribute this message.  If you receive this in error, please 
notify 
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the sender by reply e-mail and delete this message.  Thank you. 
******************************************************************* 
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Sadis & Goldberg, LLP 
551 Fifth Avenue, 21st Floor 
New York, NY 10176 
Telephone: (212) 947-3793 
Facsimile: (212) 947-3796  
Douglas  R .  Hi r sch  
Email: dhirsch@sglawyers.com 
Jennifer Rossan 
Email: jrossan@sglawyers.com 
 
Attorneys for Ascot Fund Limited 

 
 
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

 

In re: 
BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT 
SECURITIES LLC, 

 
Debtor. 

Adv. Pro. No. 08-01789 (BRL) 

SIPA LIQUIDATION 

(Substantively Consolidated) 
 

IRVING H. PICARD, Trustee for the Liquidation 
of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC, 

 
Plaintiff, 

v. 

J. EZRA MERKIN, GABRIEL CAPITAL, L.P., 
ARIEL FUND LTD., ASCOT PARTNERS, L.P., 
GABRIEL CAPITAL CORPORATION, 

 
Defendants. 

 

 
 

Adv. Pro. No. 09-1182 (BRL) 
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ASCOT FUND LIMITED’S INITIAL DISCLOSURES 
 

Pursuant to Rule 26(a)(1) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure as made applicable to 

this adversary proceeding by Rule 7026 of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure, Ascot 

Fund Limited (“Ascot Fund”) by and through its counsel Sadis & Goldberg LLP, hereby 

provides the following initial disclosures. 

These disclosures are made without waiver of, and with preservation of the right to 

raise and/or fully address the following: 

1. All issues as to competency, relevancy, materiality, privilege and admissibility 
of matters disclosed herein, and the subject matter thereof, as evidence for any 
purpose in this action or subsequent actions; 

 
2. The right to object to any matters disclosed herein, or the subject matter 

thereof, on any ground, throughout this and/or any other action; 
 

3. The right to object on any ground at any time to a demand or a request for 
further disclosure of matters identified herein, including, but not limited to the 
forms of discovery allowed by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure or other 
discovery proceedings involving or relating to the subject matter of this 
controversy; and 

 
4. The right at any time to revise, correct, add to, supplement or clarify any of 

the disclosures contained herein. 
 

To the extent that any matters disclosed by Ascot Fund herein have been disclosed 

inadvertently, and such matters otherwise fall within the scope of a privilege, Ascot Fund shall 

not be deemed to have waived such privilege as to any such disclosure or the information 

contained therein.  Likewise, Ascot Fund shall not be deemed to have waived its right to such 

privilege as to any other matter that may arise during the course of this litigation or any 

subsequent proceeding. 

Ascot Fund’s disclosures represent a good faith effort to identify information called for 

by Rule 26 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. However, these disclosures should not be  
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construed as constituting all of the facts, evidence, or other information that may exist, or that 

may eventually be established, in support of Ascot Fund’s defenses that have been and may be 

asserted in this action. Ascot Fund reserves its right to supplement its disclosures to the extent 

required by Rule 26(e). 

 
A. Rule 26(a)(1)(A)(i). The name and, if known, the address and telephone number of 

each individual likely to have discoverable information—along with the subjects of 
that information—that the disclosing party may use to support its claims or defenses, 
unless the use would be solely for impeachment. 

 

 
The following individuals are likely to have discoverable information. Unless 

otherwise noted, Ascot Fund is unaware of their current addresses and telephone numbers. 

Ascot Fund reserves its right to supplement this list as other individuals and/or entities 

become known, and/or as different subjects become relevant. 

At the present time, Ascot Fund identifies the following: 
 

1. Don Seymour 
DMS Offshore Investment Services 
dms House, 20 Genesis Close 
P.O. Box 314 
Grand Cayman KY1-1104 
ph:  1-345-749-2586 

 
2. Aldo Ghisletta  

 DMS Offshore Investment Services 
 dms House, 20 Genesis Close 

 P.O. Box 314 
 Grand Cayman KY1-1104 
 ph:  1-345-749-2586 

 

B. Rule 26(a)(1)(A)(ii). A copy—or a description by category and location—of all 
documents, electronically stored information, and tangible things that the disclosing 
party has in its possession, custody, or control and may use to support its claims or 
defenses, unless the use would be solely for impeachment. 

 

 
At the present time, Ascot Fund identifies the following documents, electronically  
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stored information, or tangible things in the possession of Ascot Fund’s counsel that contain 

information relevant to the matter in controversy: 

 
1. Investment Advisory Agreement between Ascot Fund Limited and Ariel 

Management Corporation dated February 20, 1992; 
 

2. Termination Agreement between Gabriel Capital Corporation and Ascot Fund 
Limited dated December 19, 2002; 
 

3. Ascot Fund Limited Articles of Association; 

4. Ascot Fund Offering Prospectus 2002; 

5. Ascot Fund Offering Memorandum 2006; 
 

6. Exhibit E to the Declaration of Douglas R. Hirsch in Support of Ascot Fund 
Limited’s Motion to Dismiss the Third Amended Complaint and to Sever, 
dated December 20, 2013.   

 
 
C. Rule 26(a)(1)(A)(iii).  A computation of each category of damages claimed by the 

disclosing party—who must also make available for inspection and copying as under 
Rule 34 the documents or other evidentiary material, unless privileged or protected 
from disclosure, on which each computation is based, including materials bearing on 
the nature and extent of injuries suffered. 
 
Not applicable.   

 
D. Rule 26(a)(1)(A)(iv). For inspection and copying as under Rule 34, any 

insurance agreement under which an insurance business may be liable to satisfy 
all or part of a possible judgment in the action or to indemnify or reimburse for 
payments made to satisfy the judgment. 

 
 

To Ascot Fund’s knowledge, there are no insurance agreements under which an 

insurance business may be liable to satisfy all or part of a possible judgment in the instant 

action, or to indemnify or reimburse for payments made to satisfy the judgment. 
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Dated:  January 13, 2014 
            New York, New York 

       SADIS & GOLDBERG LLP 
 
   By:  /s/ Jennifer Rossan    
   Douglas R. Hirsch 
   Jennifer Rossan  
   551 Fifth Avenue 21st Floor 
   New York, New York 10176 
    Tel. No.: (212) 947-3793 
   Fax No.:  (212) 947-3796 
   dhirsch@sglawyers.com  
   jrossan@sglawyers.com  
 
   Attorneys for Ascot Fund Limited 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

I hereby certify that a true and accurate copy of the foregoing was served this 10th day of 

January, 2014 by electronic mail upon the following: 

 
BAKER & HOSTETLER LLP 
45 Rockefeller Plaza 
New York, New York 10111 

 Tel.: (212) 589-4200 
 Fax: (212) 589-4201 
Lan Hoang 

 Edward J. Jacobs 
 Brian W. Song 
 Sarah Jane T.C. Truong 
 lhoang@bakerlaw.com 
 ejacobs@bakerlaw.com 
 bsong@bakerlaw.com 
 struong@bakerlaw.com 
 
 Attorneys for Plaintiff Irving H. Picard 
 Trustee for the Liquidation of Bernard  
 L. Madoff Investment Securities  
 
 DECHERT LLP 
 1095 Avenue of the Americas 
 New York, New York 100363 
 Tel.: (212) 698-3500 
 Fax: (212) 698-3599 
 Andrew J. Levander 
 Neil A. Steiner 
 Diane N. Princ 
 andrew.levander@dechert.com 
 neil.steiner@dechert.com 
 diane.princ@dechert.com 
 
 Attorneys for Defendants J. Ezra Merkin 
and Gabriel Capital Corporation 
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NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT 
666 Fifth Avenue 
New York, New York 10103 
Tel.: (212) 318-3342 
Fax: (212) 318-3400 
Judith A. Archer 
David L. Barrack 
Jami Vibbert 
judith.archer@nortonrosefulbright.com 
david.barrack@nortonrosefulbright.com 
jami.vibbert@nortonrosefulbright.com 
 

Attorneys for Defendant Ascot Partners, L.P. 
 
 
REED SMITH LLP 
599 Lexington Avenue 
New York, New York 10022 
Tel.: (212) 521-5400 
Fax: (212) 521-5450 
James C. McCarroll 
Jordan W. Siev 
Michael J. Venditto 
Casey D. Laffey 
jmccarroll@reedsmith.com 
jsiev@reedsmith.com 
mvenditto@reedsmith.com 
claffey@reedsmith.com 
 
Attorneys for Bart M. Schwartz, as Receiver of Defendants Ariel Fund 
Limited and Gabriel Capital, L.P.   
 
Dated:  New York, New York 
             January 14, 2014 
 
                                                                                                           /s/ Jennifer Rossan    
                                                                                                           Jennifer Rossan 
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
 
SECURITIES INVESTOR PROTECTION CORPORATION, No. 08-01789 (BRL) 
  
Plaintiff-Applicant, SIPA LIQUIDATION 
  
v. (Substantively Consolidated) 
  
BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT   
SECURITIES LLC,  
  
Defendant. 
 

 

In re:  
  
BERNARD L. MADOFF,  
  
Debtor. 
 

 

IRVING H. PICARD, Trustee for the Substantively  
Consolidated SIPA Liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff  
Investment Securities LLC and Bernard L. Madoff, 

Adv. Pro. No. 09-01182 (BRL) 

  
Plaintiff,  

  
v.  
  
J. EZRA MERKIN, GABRIEL CAPITAL, L.P., 
ARIEL FUND LTD., ASCOT PARTNERS, L.P.,  
GABRIEL CAPITAL CORPORATION, 

 

  
Defendants.   
  

 

TRUSTEE’S FOURTH SET OF REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO 
DEFENDANTS J. EZRA MERKIN AND GABRIEL CAPITAL CORPORATION 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to Rules 26 and 34 of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure (the “Federal Rules”), made applicable to this adversary proceeding pursuant to 

Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure (the “Bankruptcy Rules”) and the Local Civil Rules of 
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the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York and this Court (the “Local 

Rules”), Irving H. Picard, Trustee (the “Trustee”) for the substantively consolidated liquidation 

of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC (“BLMIS”) pursuant to the Securities 

Investment Protection Act (“SIPA”), and the estate of Bernard L. Madoff, hereby requests that 

Defendants J. Ezra Merkin and Gabriel Capital Corporation (“Merkin” and “GCC” or 

“Defendants”) produce Documents responsive to the document requests set forth herein, and 

deliver the same to the office of Baker Hostetler LLP, c/o Edward J. Jacobs, Esq., 45 Rockefeller 

Plaza, New York, New York 10111 within 30 days hereof. 

DEFINITIONS 

1. The rules of construction and definitions in Local Rule 26.3, as adopted in Rule 

7026-1 of the Bankruptcy Rules, are hereby incorporated by reference.  All defined terms, 

including those defined in Local Rule 26.3, are capitalized herein. 

2. “Account” means the BLMIS Account(s) set forth on Exhibit A to the Complaint 

and/or any other BLMIS account in which any Defendant has or had any interest in any capacity, 

whether individually or as a fiduciary and whether directly or indirectly. 

3. “Applicable Period” means the period between and including the date on which 

the Defendant first opened an account with, or managed by, the Debtor, through the present.  

4. “Ariel” means Ariel Fund, Ltd. 

5. “Ascot” means Ascot Partners, L.P. and/or Ascot Fund, Ltd. 

6. “BLMIS” means Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC, Madoff 

Securities International Ltd. (“MSIL”), Madoff Securities International LLC, Bernard L. Madoff, 

Ruth Madoff, and all affiliated Persons and entities, including, but not limited to, any officers, 

directors, agents, representatives, employees, partners, parent companies, subsidiaries, 
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predecessor or successor and related entities, and affiliates of the above specifically identified 

Persons and entities. 

7. “Complaint” means the complaint filed by the Trustee in this adversary 

proceeding. 

8. “Defendant(s)” means and includes each or all defendants in this action, as well as 

any group of two or more defendants, including Merkin, Gabriel, Ariel, Ascot, and GCC, and 

any of their officers, directors, employees, partners, corporate parents, subsidiaries or affiliates.  

9. “Defendant Funds” means Gabriel, Ariel, and Ascot. 

10. “Gabriel” means Gabriel Capital, L.P. 

11. “GCC” means Gabriel Capital Corporation. 

12. “Merkin” means J. Ezra Merkin. 

13. “Net Asset Value” means gross assets less gross liabilities attributable to a class 

or series of shares of any of the Defendants Funds as of a particular date of determination.      

14. “NYAG” means the New York State Attorney General. 

15. “NYAG Action” means them matter of The People of the State of New York v. J. 

Ezra Merkin, et al., Index No. 450879/2009. 

16. “NYAG Settlement” means the settlement, which was announced on June 25, 

2012 by the NYAG, in the NYAG Action. 

17. “Subsequent Transfer” means any Transfer of Customer Property (as defined by 

SIPA §78lll(4)) conveyed, transmitted, paid and/or remitted by any Defendant to another person, 

or any Transfer of Customer Property conveyed to another person or entity prior to being 

transferred to any Defendant. 
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18. “Transfer(s)” means any conveyance, transmittal, disposition, remittance, 

payment or payments made by BLMIS during the Applicable Period to, or on behalf of, any 

Defendant, including, but not limited to, any cash, funds, property, or other value conveyed by 

check, wire transfer, debit, credit to an account, the return of property, withdrawal from the 

Account, or by any other manner as set forth under section 101(54) of the Bankruptcy Code or 

section 270 of the New York Debtor & Creditor Law. See 11 U.S.C. § 101(54); N.Y. DEBT. & 

CRED. Law § 270.  “Transfer” also includes, but is not limited to, payments or conveyances of 

value by BLMIS to any third parties, including intermediaries, for the benefit of Defendants. 

19. “You” or “Your” means and includes Merkin or GCC in any capacity or anyone 

acting on Merkin or GCC’s behalf, including any predecessor-in-interest. 

20. For all purposes herein, spelling, grammar, syntax, abbreviations, idioms, and 

proper nouns shall be construed and interpreted according to their context to give proper 

meaning and consistency to the request for Documents. 

21. Reference to any Person that is not a natural Person and is not otherwise defined 

herein refers to and includes any parent, subsidiary, affiliate, division, branch, agency, 

representative office, predecessor, successor, principal, member, director, officer, shareholder, 

manager, employee, attorney-in-fact, attorney, nominee, agent, or representative of such Person.   

INSTRUCTIONS 

Federal Rules 26-37, made applicable to this proceeding pursuant to the Bankruptcy 

Rules, are hereby incorporated by reference and apply to each of the following instructions: 

1. All Documents shall be identified by the request(s) to which they are primarily 

responsive or be produced as they are maintained in the usual course of business.   

2. Produce all Documents and all other materials described below in Your actual or 

constructive possession, custody, or control, including in the possession, custody, or control of a 
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current or former employee, wherever those Documents and materials are maintained, including 

on personal computers, PDAs, wireless devices, or web-based email systems such as Gmail, 

Yahoo, etc. 

3. You must produce all Documents in Your custody or control, whether maintained 

in electronic or paper form and whether located on hardware owned and maintained by You or 

hardware owned and/or maintained by a third Party that stores data on Your behalf.  You must 

produce all such Documents even if they were deleted or in draft form.  Without limitation, 

hardware where such data may be stored includes servers; desktop, laptop, or tablet computers; 

cell and smart phones; PDA devices; scanners, fax machines, and copying machines; and mobile 

storage devices, such as thumb or external hard drives.  Electronically stored Documents include 

any computerized data or content stored on electromagnetic media.  Without limitation, types of 

electronically stored Documents include email, voicemail, and instant messages, intranet and 

internet system data, telephone and cellular telephone calling records, data compilations, 

spreadsheets, word processing documents, images, databases, digital photocopier memory and 

any other information stored in memory storage devices. 

4. Produce the original or duplicate, as such terms are defined by Rule 1001 of the 

Federal Rules of Evidence, of each Document requested together with all non-identical copies 

and drafts of that Document.  If a duplicate is produced, it should be legible and bound or stapled 

in the same manner as the original. 

5. Documents not otherwise responsive to these Requests should be produced: (i) if 

such Documents mention, discuss, refer to, explain, or concern one or more Documents that are 

called for by these Requests; (ii) if such Documents are attached to, enclosed with, or accompany 

Documents called for by these Requests; or (iii) if such Documents constitute routing slips, 
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transmittal memoranda or letters, comments, evaluations, or similar materials. 

6. Documents attached to each other should not be separated; separate Documents 

should not be attached to each other. 

7. Documents should include all exhibits, appendices, linked Documents, or 

otherwise appended Documents that are referenced in, attached to, included with, or are a part of 

the requested Documents. 

8. If a request calls for information Concerning a Transfer, Subsequent Transfer, 

redemption, or withdrawal from a BLMIS account, include Documents that reflect the account 

name and number for the account the funds were transferred from and to, method of transfer (i.e., 

wire, check, etc.), date of, amount and the reason for the Transfer, Subsequent Transfer, 

redemption, or withdrawal. 

9. If any Document, or any part thereof, is not produced based on a claim of 

attorney-client privilege, work-product protection, or any other privilege, then in answer to such 

request or part thereof, for each such Document: 

a. Identify the type, title and subject matter of the Document; 

b. state the place, date, and manner of preparation of the Document; 

c. Identify all authors, addressees, and recipients of the Document, including 

information about such Persons to assess the privilege asserted; and 

d. Identify the legal privilege(s) and the factual basis for the claim. 

10. Documents should not contain redactions unless such redactions are made to 

protect information subject to the attorney-client privilege and/or work product doctrine.  In the 

event any Documents are produced with redactions, a log setting forth the information requested 

in Instruction 9 above must be provided. 
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11. To the extent a Document sought herein was at one time, but is no longer, in Your 

actual or constructive possession, custody, or control, state whether it: (i) is missing or lost; (ii) 

has been destroyed; (iii) has been transferred to others; and/or (iv) has been otherwise disposed 

of.  In each instance, Identify the Document, state the time period during which it was 

maintained, state the circumstance surrounding authorization for such disposition thereof and the 

date thereof, Identify each Person having knowledge of the circumstances of the disposition 

thereof, and Identify each Person who had possession, custody, or control of the Document, to 

whom it was available or who had knowledge of the Document and/or the contents thereof.  

Documents prepared prior to, but that relate or refer to, the time period covered by these 

Document Requests are to be identified and produced. 

MANNER OF PRODUCTION 
 

 All documents produced to the Trustee shall be provided in accordance with and pursuant 

to the Protocol Governing the Production of Records, attached hereto as Schedule A. 

REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION 

1. All documents concerning Raanan Agus and Yeshiva University and/or the 

Ramaz School. 

2. All documents concerning Randy Yanker and Lehman Brothers and/or BLMIS.  

3. All documents concerning Maurice Maertens and/or New York University, 

including, but not limited to, New York University’s actual or potential investment with BLMIS 

and/or the Defendant Funds.  

4. All documents concerning New York University Law School, including, but not 

limited to, New York University Law School’s actual or potential investment with BLMIS 

and/or the Defendant Funds.  

09-01182-smb    Doc 337-20    Filed 04/07/17    Entered 04/07/17 18:01:36    Exhibit 19  
  Pg 8 of 20



 8

5. All documents concerning the Max Planck Endowment Foundation, including, 

but not limited to, the Max Planck Endowment Foundation’s actual or potential investment with 

BLMIS and/or the Defendant Funds.  

6. All documents concerning Joseph Sprung and/or JBS Financial Services, 

including, but not limited to, Joseph Sprung and/or JBS Financial Services’s actual or potential 

investment with BLMIS and/or the Defendant Funds.  

7. All documents concerning William Scalzulli and/or Kraft Group, including, but 

not limited to, Kraft Group’s actual or potential investment with BLMIS and/or the Defendant 

Funds.  

8. All documents concerning Arthur Fried and any actual or potential investment by 

Avi Chai in a fund owned, managed and/or controlled by Merkin, GCC and/or BLMIS. 

9. All documents concerning Arthur Fried and any actual or potential investment by 

Keren Keshert in a fund owned, managed and/or controlled by Merkin, GCC and/or BLMIS. 

10. All documents concerning Avi Chai and its actual or potential investment in a 

fund owned, managed and/or controlled by Merkin, GCC and/or BLMIS.   

11. All documents concerning Keren Keshert and its actual or potential investment in 

a fund owned, managed and/or controlled by Merkin, GCC and/or BLMIS.  

12. All documents concerning Shelby White and any actual or potential investment 

by the Leon Levy Foundation in a fund owned, managed and/or controlled by Merkin, GCC 

and/or BLMIS. 

13. All documents concerning John Bernstein and any actual or potential investment 

by the Leon Levy Foundation in a fund owned, managed and/or controlled by Merkin, GCC 

and/or BLMIS. 
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14. All documents concerning the Leon Levy Foundation and its actual or potential 

investment in a fund owned, managed and/or controlled by Merkin, GCC and/or BLMIS. 

15. All documents concerning Patrick Erne. 

16. All documents concerning Christof Reichmuth. 

17. All documents concerning Reichmuth & Co., including, but not limited to, any 

actual or potential investment by Reichmuth & Co. in a fund owned, managed and/or controlled 

by Merkin, GCC and/or BLMIS.  

18. All documents concerning Union Bancaire Privée.  

19. All documents concerning Albourne Partners.  

20. All documents concerning Cambridge Associates.  

21. All documents concerning Charles Sherman. 

22. All documents concerning Brendan McCarthy. 

23. All documents concerning Suzanne Kleeblatt. 

24. All documents concerning James Mnookin. 

25. All documents concerning Concord Management. 

26. All documents concerning Michael Matlin. 

27. All documents concerning Michael Mahagan. 

28. All documents concerning Ryan Gold.   

29. All documents concerning Geraldine Fabrikant. 

30. All documents concerning Donald Sussman.   

31. To the extent not already produced, all documents concerning any arbitration 

proceeding or litigation involving the Defendants and concerning investments made by or 

through Defendants with BLMIS, including any pleadings, court filings, deposition transcripts 
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(including exhibits), transcripts, expert reports (including exhibits), witness statements taken or 

given by Defendants or produced in discovery, and final rulings or judgments. 

32. All documents received by Defendants in connection with any legal proceeding or 

arbitration related to BLMIS.   

33. All documents evidencing or reflecting any investor’s knowledge of Gabriel, 

Ariel or Ascot’s exposure to BLMIS. 

34. All documents evidencing or reflecting any Defendant Fund investor or potential 

investors who questioned the investment in BLMIS or sought information regarding the 

investment in BLMIS.  

35. All documents concerning any alleged deferred compensation owed to Mr. 

Merkin by the Defendant Funds. 

36. All documents concerning the winding down, after December 11, 2008, of any of 

the Defendant Funds’ assets. 

37. All documents concerning any audit or investigation conducted by any Person of 

any of the Defendants’ assets including, but not limited to, any of the underlying documents 

considered in connection with the NYAG Settlement. 

38. All documents detailing and/or verifying Mr. Merkin’s assets that were provided 

by Mr. Merkin to the NYAG. 

39. All documents that were considered in preparing any documents provided to the 

NYAG detailing and/or verifying Mr. Merkin’s assets. 

40. All investor statements issued by the Defendants to investors of the Defendant 

Funds.   
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41. All documents concerning any transfers by and between accounts held by 

Defendants at BLMIS.  

42. All documents concerning any transfers by and between bank accounts held by 

the Defendant Funds. 

43. All documents concerning any loan by and between any Defendant, including, but 

not limited to, loans reflected in Defendant GCC’s Quick Books records. 

44. All documents concerning any loan extended to any investors and repayments 

received by any Defendant, including, but not limited to loans reflected in Defendants’ document 

production to the NYAG. 

45. To the extent not already produced, all documents concerning the Net Asset 

Value of the Defendant Funds. 

46. To the extent not produced, all documents supporting and/or negative any claim 

or defense in the litigation.   

Date: New York, New York 
          April 12, 2013 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
/s/ Edward J. Jacobs___________________ 
Baker & Hostetler LLP 
45 Rockefeller Plaza 
New York, New York 10111 
Telephone: (212) 589-4200 
Facsimile: (212) 589-4201 
David J. Sheehan  
Email: dsheehan@bakerlaw.com  
Lan Hoang  
Email: lhoang@bakerlaw.com 
Edward J. Jacobs 
Email: ejacobs@bakerlaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Irving H. Picard, Trustee for the 
Substantively Consolidated SIPA Liquidation 
of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities 
LLC and the Estate of Bernard L. Madoff 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 
I hereby certify that a true and accurate copy of the foregoing was served this 12th day of 

April, 2013 by electronic mail upon the following:  

 
Counsel to Defendants J. Ezra Merkin and Gabriel Capital Corporation 
Neil A. Steiner, Esq. 
Kristina Moon, Esq. 
Dechert LLP 
Email:  neil.steiner@dechert.com 
Email:  kristina.moon@dechert.com 
 
Counsel to Bart M. Schwartz, Receiver of Gabriel Capital, L.P. and Ariel Fund Limited 
Casey Laffey, Esq. 
Jordan W. Siev, Esq. 
Reed Smith LLP 
Email:  claffey@reedsmith.com 
Email:  jsiev@reedsmith.com 
 
Counsel to Ascot Partners, L.P. and David B. Pitofsky, Receiver for Ascot Partners, L.P. 
Daniel M. Glosband, Esq. 
Joseph Schwartz, Esq. 
Goodwin Procter LLP 
Email:  dglosband@goodwinprocter.com 
Email:  jschwartz@goodwinprocter.com 
 

 
   /s/ Edward J. Jacobs________________________ 

An Attorney for Irving H. Picard, Trustee for the 
Substantively Consolidated SIPA Liquidation of 
Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC and  
the Estate of Bernard L. Madoff 
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Schedule A:  Protocol Governing the Production of Records 

i 
 

I. Locations of Electronically Stored Information (“ESI”): 

A. You shall identify and search the following locations for potentially relevant ESI: 

1. Network Servers 

a. Shared Drives on network servers 

b. Personal Drives on network servers 

2. Computers (including desktops, laptops, home computers) 

3. PDAs (including blackberries, iPhones, other smartphones) 

4. Email (both work and personal) on Email Servers and Computers 

a. Email boxes in their entirety (including, Inboxes, Sent Folders, 
Subfolders) 

b. Archives 

5. Intranet 

6. Document Management Systems (e.g., iManage, FileSite, Sharepoint) 

7. CDs/DVDs/Flash Drives/External Drives 

8. Voicemail Systems 

9. Copy machines and scanners 

10. Instant Message Programs 

II. Location(s) of Hard Copy Records 

A. You shall identify and search the following locations for potentially relevant hard 
copy records. 

1. Employee Offices (including home offices) 

2. On-site Record Storage Facilities  

3. Off-site Record Storage Facilities 

III. Backups 

A. You shall identify backup programs/software, if any, in use since January 1, 2008.  
You shall also provide the procedures for backups and whether any backups have 
been overwritten or restored.  Procedures may include:   
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 ii

1. Who performs the backups? 

2. How often is the backup procedure performed? 

3. Are full or incremental backups created? 

4. How long are backups retained?  Is there a backup rotation schedule? 

5. What medium is the backup stored on? 

6. Where are the backups maintained? 

7. Are the backups indexed?  Are they searchable? 

8. How do You keep track of the existing backups?  Are there schedules or a 
database of existing backups? 

9. Have the policy/procedures changed since January 1, 2008? 

10. Whether any email server backups have been destroyed or overwritten 
since January 1, 2008? 

11. Whether an employee has ever asked for emails to be restored because 
they were inadvertently deleted (and if so, whether the emails were 
restored)? 

12. What steps are necessary to restore the email box of a specific employee 
as of a particular date and time, including costs involved? 

IV. Manner of Production Generally 

A. All documents produced to the Trustee shall be provided in either native file 
(“native”) or single-page 300 dpi-resolution group IV TIF format (“TIFF”) as 
specified below, along with appropriately formatted industry-standard database 
load files, and accompanied by true and correct copies or representations of 
unaltered attendant metadata.  Where documents are produced in TIFF format, 
each document shall be produced along with a multi-page, document-level 
searchable text file (“searchable text”) as rendered by an industry-standard text 
extraction program in the case of electronic originals, or by an industry-standard 
Optical Character Recognition (“OCR”) program in the case of scanned paper 
documents.  Searchable text of documents shall not be produced as fielded data 
within the “.dat file” as described below.  In addition to the fielded data to be 
provided as set forth below, the “.dat file” shall contain a field identifying if a 
document has been designated “confidential.” 
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Schedule A:  Protocol Governing the Production of Records 
 

 iii

V. Production Formats of Electronic Records 

Documents and other responsive data or materials created, stored, or displayed on electronic or 
electro-magnetic media shall be produced in the order in which the documents are or were stored 
in the ordinary course of business, including all reasonably accessible metadata, custodian or 
document source information, and searchable text as to allow the Trustee through a reasonable 
and modest effort, to fairly, accurately and completely access, search and display, comprehend 
and assess the documents’ true and original content. 
 
All responsive electronically stored information (“ESI”) shall be produced in the following 
formats: 

A. TIFFs.   

1. All images shall be delivered as single-page 300 dpi-resolution group IV 
TIF format.  Image file names should not contain spaces. 

B. Unique IDs. 

1. Each image should have a unique file name and should be named with the 
Bates number assigned to it. 

C. Text File. 

1. Extracted full text in the form of multipage .txt files shall be provided.  
Text from redacted pages will be produced in optical character recognition 
(“OCR”) format rather than extracted text. 

D. Parent-Child Relationship. 

1. Parent-child relationships (the association between an attachment and its 
parent record) should be preserved and produced. 

E. Database Load Files and Production Media Structure. 

1. Database load files shall consist of: (1) a comma-delimited values (“.dat”) 
file containing: production document identifier information, data designed 
to preserve “parent and child” relationships within document “families,” 
reasonably accessible and properly preserved metadata (or bibliographic 
coding in the case of paper documents), custodian or document source 
information, as well as native file loading/linking information (where 
applicable); and (2) an Opticon (“.opt”) file to facilitate the loading of tiff 
images.  Load files should be provided in a root-level folder named 
“Data,” images shall be provided within a root level “Images” folder 
containing reasonably structured subfolders, and searchable text files shall 
be provided in a single root-level “Text” folder. 
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F. Metadata. 

1. You shall provide all metadata fields including, but not limited to, those 
set forth in the below metadata fields for emails and records that were 
originally created using common, off-the-shelf software (e.g., Microsoft 
Word, Microsoft PowerPoint, Microsoft Excel, Adobe PDF), whether 
attached to an email or created and produced as a stand-alone document.    

2. Metadata Fields. 

a. Custodian 

b. Beginning Bates Number 

c. Ending Bates Number 

d. Beginning Attachment Bates Number 

e. Ending Attachment Bates Number 

f. Record Type 

g. Sent Date 

h. Sent Time 

i. Create Date 

j. Create Time 

k. Last Modified Date 

l. Last Modified Time 

m. Parent Folder 

n. Author 

o. To  

p. From 

q. CC 

r. BCC 

s. Subject/Title 

t. Original Source 
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Schedule A:  Protocol Governing the Production of Records 
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u. Native Path 

v. File Extension 

w. File Name 

x. File Size 

y. MD5Hash 

G. Emails and Attachments, and Other Email Account-Related Documents. 

1. All documents and accompanying metadata created and/or stored in the 
ordinary course of business within commercial, off-the-shelf e-mail 
systems including but not limited to Microsoft Exchange™, Lotus 
Notes™ or Novell Groupwise™ shall be produced in TIFF format, 
accompanying metadata, and searchable text files or, alternately, in a 
format that fairly, accurately, and completely represents each document in 
such a manner as to make the document(s) reasonably useable, 
manageable, and comprehendible by the Trustee. 

H. Documents and Data Created or Stored in or by Structured Electronic Databases. 

1. With the exclusion of email and email account-related documents and 
data, all documents and accompanying metadata created and/or stored in 
structured electronic databases or files shall be produced in a format that 
enables the Trustee to reasonably manage and import those documents 
into a useable, coherent database.  The documents must be accompanied 
with reasonably detailed, clear and focused documentation explaining the 
documents’ content and format including but not limited to data 
dictionaries and diagrams.  Some acceptable formats, if and only if 
provided with definitive file(s), table(s) and field level schemas include:  

a. XML format file(s); 

b. Microsoft SQL database(s); 

c. Access database(s); and/or 

d. fixed or variable length ASCII delimited files. 

I. Spreadsheets, Multimedia, and Non-Standard File Types. 

1. All documents generated or stored in software such as Microsoft Excel or 
other commercially available spreadsheet programs, as well as any 
multimedia files such as audio or video, shall be produced in their native 
format, along with an accompanying placeholder image in tiff format 
indicating a native file has been produced.  A “Nativelink” entry shall be 
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included in the .dat load file indicating the relative file path to each native 
file on the production media. To the extent the party has other file types 
that do not readily or easily and accurately convert to tiff and searchable 
text, the party may elect to produce those files in native format subject to 
the other requirements listed herein.  Native files may be produced within 
a separate root-level folder structure on deliverable media entitled 
“Natives.” 

2. To the extent spreadsheets are being redacted, you shall produce the 
spreadsheets as redacted in TIFF format.  Where necessary, the parties 
will negotiate in good faith productions in native format of redacted 
spreadsheets where production in TIFF format is impracticable 

J. “Other” Electronic Documents. 

1. All other documents and accompanying metadata and embedded data 
created or stored in unstructured files generated by commercially available 
software systems (excluding e-mails, structured electronic databases, 
spreadsheets, or multimedia) such as but not limited to word processing 
(such as Microsoft Word), image files (such as Adobe .pdf files, and other 
formats), and text files shall be produced in tiff and searchable text format 
in the order the files are or were stored in the ordinary course of business. 

VI. Production Format of Hard Copy Records 

Documents originally created or stored on paper shall be produced in TIFF format. Relationships 
between documents shall be identified within the .dat file utilizing document identifier numbers 
to express parent document/child attachment boundaries, folder boundaries, and other 
groupings.  In addition, the searchable text of each document shall be provided as a multi-page 
text file as provided for by these instructions. 
 
All responsive hard copy records shall be produced in the following formats: 
 

A. TIFFs.   

1. All images shall be delivered as single-page 300 dpi-resolution group IV 
TIF format.  Image file names should not contain spaces. 

B. Unique IDs. 

1. Each image should have a unique file name and should be named with the 
Bates number assigned to it. 

C. OCR. 

1. High-quality multipage OCR text shall be provided. 

D. Database Load Files. 
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1. Database load files shall consist of: (1) a comma-delimited values (“.dat”) 
file containing: production document identifier information, data designed 
to preserve “parent and child” relationships within document “families”, 
reasonably accessible and properly preserved metadata (or bibliographic 
coding in the case of paper documents), custodian or document source 
information, as well as native file loading/linking information (where 
applicable); and (2) an Opticon (“.opt”) file to facilitate the loading of tiff 
images.  Load files should be provided in a root-level folder named 
“Data,” images shall be provided within a root level “Images” folder 
containing reasonably structured subfolders, and searchable text files shall 
be provided in a single root-level “Text” folder.  

E. Unitizing of Records. 

1. In scanning hard copy records, distinct records shall not be merged into a 
single record, and single records shall not be split into multiple records. 

F. Parent-Child Relationship. 

1. Parent-child relationships (the association between an attachment and its 
parent record) should be preserved and produced. 

G. Objective Coding Fields. 

1. The following objective coding fields should be provided: 

a. Beginning Bates Number 

b. Ending Bates Number 

c. Beginning Attachment Bates Number 

d. Ending Attachment Bates Number 

e. Source/Custodian 

H. Objective Coding Format 

1. Fields should be Pipe (|) delimited. 

2. String values within the file should be enclosed with Carats (^). 

3. Multiple entries in a field should have a semi-colon (;) delimiter. 

4. The first line should contain metadata headers and below the first line 
there should be exactly only one line for each record. 

5. Each field row must contain the same amount of fields as the header row. 
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

SECURITIES INVESTOR PROTECTION CORPORATION, No. 08-01789 (BRL) 

Plaintiff-Applicant, SIPA LIQUIDATION 

v. (Substantively Consolidated) 

BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT 
SECURITIES LLC, 

Defendant. 

In re: 

BERNARD L. MADOFF, 

Debtor. 

IRVING H. PICARD, Trustee for the Substantively 
Consolidated SIP A Liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff 
Investment Securities LLC and Bernard L. Madoff, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

J. EZRA MERKIN, GABRIEL CAPITAL, L.P., 
ARIEL FUND LTD., ASCOT PARTNERS, L.P., 
GABRIEL CAPITAL CORPORATION, 

Defendants. 

Adv. Pro. No. 09-01182 (BRL) 

TRUSTEE'S FOURTH SET OF REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO 
DEFENDANTS ASCOT PARTNERS, L.P. 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to Rules 26 and 34 of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure (the "Federal Rules"), made applicable to this adversary proceeding pursuant to 

Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure (the "Bankruptcy Rules") and the Local Civil Rules of 
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the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York and this Court (the "Local 

Rules"), Irving H. Picard, Trustee (the "Trustee") for the substantively consolidated liquidation 

of Bernard L. Madoffinvestment Securities LLC ("BLMIS") pursuant to the Securities 

Investment Protection Act ("SIP A"), and the estate of Bernard L. Madoff, hereby requests that 

Defendants J. Ezra Merkin and Gabriel Capital Corporation ("Merkin" and "GCC" or 

"Defendants") produce Documents responsive to the document requests set forth herein, and 

deliver the same to the office of Baker Hostetler LLP, c/o Edward J. Jacobs, Esq., 45 Rockefeller 

Plaza, New York, New York 10111 within 30 days hereof. 

DEFINITIONS 

1. The rules of construction and definitions in Local Rule 26.3, as adopted in Rule 

7026-1 of the Bankruptcy Rules, are hereby incorporated by reference. All defined terms, 

including those defined in Local Rule 26.3, are capitalized herein. 

2. "Account" means the BLMIS Account(s) set fmih on Exhibit A to the Complaint 

and/or any other BLMIS account in which any Defendant has or had any interest in any capacity, 

whether individually or as a fiduciary and whether directly or indirectly. 

3. "Applicable Period" means the period between and including the date on which 

the Defendant first opened an account with, or managed by, the Debtor, through the present. 

4. "Ariel" means Ariel Fund, Ltd. 

5. "Ascot" means Ascot Partners, L.P. and/or Ascot Fund, Ltd. 

6. "BLMIS" means Bernard L. Madofflnvestment Securities LLC, Madoff 

Securities International Ltd. ("MSIL"), Madoff Securities International LLC, Bernard L. Madoff, 

Ruth Madoff, and all affiliated Persons and entities, including, but not limited to, any officers, 

directors, agents, representatives, employees, partners, parent companies, subsidiaries, 

2 
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predecessor or successor and related entities, and affiliates of the above specifically identified 

Persons and entities. 

7. "Complaint" means the complaint filed by the Trustee in this adversary 

proceeding. 

8. "Defendant(s)" means and includes each or all defendants in this action, as well as 

any group of two or more defendants, including Merkin, Gabriel, Ariel, Ascot, and GCC, and 

any of their officers, directors, employees, patiners, corporate parents, subsidiaries or affiliates. 

9. "Defendant Funds" means Gabriel, Ariel, and Ascot. 

10. "Gabriel" means Gabriel Capital, L.P. 

11. "GCC" means Gabriel Capital Corporation. 

12. "Merkin" means J. Ezra Merkin. 

13. "Net Asset Value" means gross assets less gross liabilities attributable to a class 

or series of shares of any of the Defendants Funds as of a particular date of determination. 

14. "NYAG" means the New York State Attorney General. 

15. "NYAG Action" means them matter of The People of the State of New York v. J 

Ezra Merkin, et al., Index No. 450879/2009. 

16. "NYAG Settlement" means the settlement, which was announced on June 25, 

2012 by the NYAG, in the NYAG Action. 

17. "Subsequent Transfer" means any Transfer of Customer Property (as defined by 

SIPA §78lll( 4)) conveyed, transmitted, paid and/or remitted by any Defendant to another person, 

or any Transfer of Customer Property conveyed to another person or entity prior to being 

transferred to any Defendant. 

3 
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18. "Transfer(s)" means any conveyance, transmittal, disposition, remittance, 

payment or payments made by BLMIS during the Applicable Period to, or on behalf of, any 

Defendant, including, but not limited to, any cash, funds, property, or other value conveyed by 

check, wire transfer, debit, credit to an account, the return of property, withdrawal from the 

Account, or by any other manner as set forth under section 101(54) of the Bankruptcy Code or 

section 270 ofthe New York Debtor & Creditor Law. See 11 U.S.C. § 101(54); N.Y. DEBT. & 

CRED. Law§ 270. "Transfer" also includes, but is not limited to, payments or conveyances of 

value by BLMIS to any third parties, including intermediaries, for the benefit of Defendants. 

19. "You" or "Your" means and includes Ascot Partners, L.P. and/or Ascot Fund, 

Ltd. in any capacity or anyone acting on Ascot's behalf, including any predecessor-in-interest. 

20. For all purposes herein, spelling, grammar, syntax, abbreviations, idioms, and 

proper nouns shall be construed and interpreted according to their context to give proper 

meaning and consistency to the request for Documents. 

21. Reference to any Person that is not a natural Person and is not otherwise defined 

herein refers to and includes any parent, subsidiary, affiliate, division, branch, agency, 

representative office, predecessor, successor, principal, member, director, officer, shareholder, 

manager, employee, attorney-in-fact, attorney, nominee, agent, or representative of such Person. 

INSTRUCTIONS 

Federal Rules 26-37, made applicable to this proceeding pursuant to the Bankruptcy 

Rules, are hereby incorporated by reference and apply to each of the following instructions: 

1. All Documents shall be identified by the request( s) to which they are primarily 

responsive or be produced as they are maintained in the usual course of business. 

2. Produce all Documents and all other materials described below in Your actual or 

constructive possession, custody, or control, including in the possession, custody, or control of a 
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current or former employee, wherever those Documents and materials are maintained, including 

on personal computers, PDAs, wireless devices, or web-based email systems such as Gmail, 

Yahoo, etc. 

3. You must produce all Documents in Your custody or control, whether maintained 

in electronic or paper form and whether located on hardware owned and maintained by You or 

hardware owned and/or maintained by a third Party that stores data on Your behalf. You must 

produce all such Documents even if they were deleted or in draft form. Without limitation, 

hardware where such data may be stored includes servers; desktop, laptop, or tablet computers; 

cell and smart phones; PDA devices; scanners, fax machines, and copying machines; and mobile 

storage devices, such as thumb or external hard drives. Electronically stored Documents include 

any computerized data or content stored on electromagnetic media. Without limitation, types of 

electronically stored Documents include email, voicemail, and instant messages, intranet and 

internet system data, telephone and cellular telephone calling records, data compilations, 

spreadsheets, word processing documents, images, databases, digital photocopier memory and 

any other information stored in memory storage devices. 

4. Produce the original or duplicate, as such terms are defined by Rule 1001 of the 

Federal Rules of Evidence, of each Document requested together with all non-identical copies 

and drafts of that Document. If a duplicate is produced, it should be legible and bound or stapled 

in the same manner as the original. 

5. Documents not otherwise responsive to these Requests should be produced: (i) if 

such Documents mention, discuss, refer to, explain, or concern one or more Documents that are 

called for by these Requests; (ii) if such Documents are attached to, enclosed with, or accompany 

Documents called for by these Requests; or (iii) if such Documents constitute routing slips, 

5 
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transmittal memoranda or letters, comments, evaluations, or similar materials. 

6. Documents attached to each other should not be separated; separate Documents 

should not be attached to each other. 

7. Documents should include all exhibits, appendices, linked Documents, or 

otherwise appended Documents that are referenced in, attached to, included with, or are a part of 

the requested Documents. 

8. If a request calls for infmmation Concerning a Transfer, Subsequent Transfer, 

redemption, or withdrawal from a BLMIS account, include Documents that reflect the account 

name and number for the account the funds were transferred from and to, method of transfer (i.e., 

wire, check, etc.), date of, amount and the reason for the Transfer, Subsequent Transfer, 

redemption, or withdrawal. 

9. If any Document, or any part thereof, is not produced based on a claim of 

attorney-client privilege, work-product protection, or any other privilege, then in answer to such 

request or part thereof, for each such Document: 

a. Identify the type, title and subject matter of the Document; 

b. state the place, date, and manner of preparation of the Document; 

c. Identify all authors, addressees, and recipients of the Document, including 

information about such Persons to assess the privilege asserted; and 

d. Identify the legal privilege(s) and the factual basis for the claim. 

10. Documents should not contain redactions unless such redactions are made to 

protect information subject to the attorney-client privilege and/or work product doctrine. In the 

event any Documents are produced with redactions, a log setting forth the infmmation requested 

in Instruction 9 above must be provided. 

6 
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11. To the extent a Document sought herein was at one time, but is no longer, in Your 

actual or constructive possession, custody, or control, state whether it: (i) is missing or lost; (ii) 

has been destroyed; (iii) has been transferred to others; and/or (iv) has been otherwise disposed 

of. In each instance, Identify the Document, state the time period during which it was 

maintained, state the circumstance surrounding authorization for such disposition thereof and the 

date thereof, Identify each Person having knowledge of the circumstances of the disposition 

thereof, and Identify each Person who had possession, custody, or control ofthe Document, to 

whom it was available or who had knowledge of the Document and/or the contents thereof. 

Documents prepared prior to, but that relate or refer to, the time period covered by these 

Document Requests are to be identified and produced. 

MANNER OF PRODUCTION 

All documents produced to the Trustee shall be provided in accordance with and pursuant 

to the Protocol Goveming the Production of Records, attached hereto as Schedule A. 

REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION 

1. All documents received by Defendants in connection with any legal proceeding or 

arbitration related to BLMIS. 

2. All documents evidencing or reflecting any investor's knowledge of Gabriel, 

Ariel or Ascot's exposure to BLMIS. 

3. All documents evidencing or reflecting any Defendant Fund investor or potential 

investors who questioned the investment in BLMIS or sought information regarding the 

investment in BLMIS. 

4. All documents conceming any alleged deferred compensation owed to Mr. 

Merkin by the Defendant Funds. 
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5. All documents concerning the winding down, after December 11, 2008, of any of 

the Defendant Funds' assets. 

6. All documents concerning any audit or investigation conducted by any Person of 

any of the Defendants' assets including, but not limited to, any of the underlying documents 

considered in connection with the NYAG Settlement. 

7. All documents detailing and/or verifying Mr. Merkin's assets that were provided 

by Mr. Merkin to the NY AG. 

8. All documents that were considered in preparing any documents provided to the 

NYAG detailing and/or verifying Mr. Merkin's assets. 

9. All investor statements issued by the Defendants to investors of the Defendant 

Funds. 

10. To the extent not already produced, all documents concerning the Net Asset 

Value of the Defendant Funds. 

11. To the extent not produced, all documents supporting and/or negating any claim 

or defense in the litigation. 

Date: New York, New York 
June 3, 2013 

8 

Respectfully submitted, 

Is/ Edward J Jacobs 
Baker & Hostetler LLP 
45 Rockefeller Plaza 
New York, New York 10111 
Telephone: (212) 589-4200 
Facsimile: (212) 589-4201 
David J. Sheehan 
Email: dsheehan@bakerlaw.com 
LanHoang 
Email: lhoang@bakerlaw.com 
Edward J. Jacobs 
Email: ejacobs@bakerlaw.com 
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Attorneys for Irving H Picard, Trustee for the 
Substantively Consolidated SIP A Liquidation 
of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities 
LLC and the Estate of Bernard L. Madoff 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and accurate copy of the foregoing was served this 3rd day of 

June, 2013 by electronic mail upon the following: 

Counsel to Defendants J. Ezra Merkin and Gabriel Capital Corporation 
Neil A. Steiner, Esq. 
Kristina Moon, Esq. 
Dechert LLP 
Email: neil.steiner@dechert.com 
Email: kristina.moon@dechert.com 

Counsel to Bart M. Schwmiz, Receiver of Gabriel Capital, L.P. and Ariel Fund Limited 
Casey Laffey, Esq. 
Jordan W. Siev, Esq. 
Reed Smith LLP 
Email: claffey@reedsmith.com 
Email: jsiev@reedsmith.com 

Counsel to Ascot Partners, L.P. and Ralph C. Dawson, Receiver for Ascot Partners, L.P. 
David L. Barrack, Esq. 
Judith A. Archer, Esq. 
Jami Mills Vibbert, Esq. 
Fulbright & Jaworski LLP 
Email: dbarrack@fulbright.com 
Email: jarcher@fulbright.com 
Email: jvibbert@fulbright.com 

Is/ Edward J Jacobs 
An Attorney for Irving H Picard, Trustee for the 
Substantively Consolidated SIP A Liquidation of 
Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC and 
the Estate of Bernard L. Madoff 
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Schedule A: Protocol Governing Production of Documents 

I. Locations ofElectronically Stored Information ("ESI"): 

A. You shall identify and search the following locations for potentially relevant ESI: 

1. Network Servers 

a. Shared Drives on network servers 

b. Personal Drives on network servers 

2. Computers (including desktops, laptops, home computers) 

3. PDAs (including blackberries, iPhones, other smartphones) 

4. Email (both work and personal) on Email Servers and Computers 

a. Email boxes in their entirety (including, Inboxes, Sent Folders, 
Subfolders) 

b. Archives 

5. Intranet 

6. Document Management Systems (e.g., iManage, FileSite, Sharepoint) 

7. CDs/DVDs/Flash Drives/External Drives 

8. Voicemail Systems 

9. Copy machines and scanners 

10. Instant Message Programs 

II. Location(s) of Hard Copy Records 

A. You shall identify and search the following locations for potentially relevant hard 
copy records. 

1. Employee Offices (including home offices) 

2. On-site Record Storage Facilities 

3. Off-site Record Storage Facilities 

III. Backups 

1 
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A. You shall identifY backup programs/software, if any, in use since January 1, 2008. 
You shall also provide the procedures for backups and whether any backups have 
been overwritten or restored. Procedures may include: 

1. Who performs the backups? 

2. How often is the backup procedure performed? 

3. Are full or incremental backups created? 

4. How long are backups retained? Is there a backup rotation schedule? 

5. What medium is the backup stored on? 

6. Where are the backups maintained? 

7. Are the backups indexed? Are they searchable? 

8. How do You keep track of the existing backups? Are there schedules or a 
database of existing backups? 

9. Have the policy/procedures changed since January 1, 2008? 

1 0. Whether any email server backups have been destroyed or overwritten 
since January 1, 2008? 

11. Whether an employee has ever asked for emails to be restored because 
they were inadvertently deleted (and if so, whether the emails were 
restored)? 

12. What steps are necessary to restore the email box of a specific employee 
as of a particular date and time, including costs involved? 

IV. Manner ofProduction Generally 

A. All documents produced to the Trustee shall be provided in either native file 
("native") or single-page 300 dpi-resolution group IV TIF format ("TIFF") as 
specified below, along with appropriately formatted industry-standard database 
load files, and accompanied by true and correct copies or representations of 
unaltered attendant metadata. Where documents are produced in TIFF format, 
each document shall be produced along with a multi-page, document-level 
searchable text file ("searchable text") as rendered by an industry-standard text 
extraction program in the case of electronic originals, or by an industry-standard 
Optical Character Recognition ("OCR") program in the case of scanned paper 
documents. Searchable text of documents shall not be produced as fielded data 
within the ".dat file" as described below. In addition to the fielded data to be 
provided as set forth below, the" .dat file" shall contain a field identifYing if a 
document has been designated "confidential." 
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V. Production Formats of Electronic Records 

Documents and other responsive data or materials created, stored, or displayed on 
electronic or electro-magnetic media shall be produced in the order in which the 
documents are or were stored in the ordinary course of business, including all reasonably 
accessible metadata, custodian or document source information, and searchable text as to 
allow the Trustee through a reasonable and modest effort, to fairly, accurately and 
completely access, search and display, comprehend and assess the documents' true and 
original content. 

All responsive electronically stored information ("ESI") shall be produced in the following 
formats: 

1. All images shall be delivered as single-page 300 dpi-resolution group IV 
TIF format. Image file names should not contain spaces. 

B. Unique IDs. 

1. Each image should have a unique file name and should be named with the 
Bates number assigned to it. 

C. Text File. 

1. Extracted full text in the form ofmultipage .txt files shall be provided. 
Text from redacted pages will be produced in optical character recognition 
("OCR") format rather than extracted text. 

D. Parent-Child Relationship. 

1. Parent-child relationships (the association between an attachment and its 
parent record) should be preserved and produced. 

E. Database Load Files and Production Media Structure. 

1. Database load files shall consist of: (1) a comma-delimited values (".dat") 
file containing: production document identifier information, data designed 
to preserve "parent and child" relationships within document "families," 
reasonably accessible and properly preserved metadata (or bibliographic 
coding in the case of paper documents), custodian or document source 
information, as well as native file loading/linking information (where 
applicable); and (2) an Opticon (".opt") file to facilitate the loading oftiff 
images. Load files should be provided in a root-level folder named 
"Data," images shall be provided within a root level "Images" folder 
containing reasonably structured subfolders, and searchable text files shall 
be provided in a single root-level "Text" folder. 
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F. Metadata. 

1. You shall provide all metadata fields including, but not limited to, those 
set forth in the below metadata fields for emails and records that were 
originally created using common, off-the-shelf software (e.g., Microsoft 
Word, Microsoft PowerPoint, Microsoft Excel, Adobe PDF), whether 
attached to an email or created and produced as a stand-alone document. 

2. Metadata Fields. 

a. Custodian 

b. Beginning Bates Number 

c. Ending Bates Number 

d. Beginning Attachment Bates Number 

e. Ending Attachment Bates Number 

f. Record Type 

g. Sent Date 

h. Sent Time 

I. Create Date 

j. Create Time 

k. Last Modified Date 

1. Last Modified Time 

m. Parent Folder 

n. Author 

0. To 

p. From 

g. cc 

r. BCC 

s. Subject/Title 

t. Original Source 
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u. Native Path 

v. File Extension 

w. File Name 

X. File Size 

y. MD5Hash 

G. Emails and Attachments, and Other Email Account-Related Documents. 

1. All documents and accompanying metadata created and/or stored in the 
ordinary course of business within commercial, off-the-shelf e-mail 
systems including but not limited to Microsoft Exchange™, Lotus 
Notes™ or Novell Groupwise™ shall be produced in TIFF format, 
accompanying metadata, and searchable text files or, alternately, in a 
format that fairly, accurately, and completely represents each document in 
such a manner as to make the document(s) reasonably useable, 
manageable, and comprehendible by the Trustee. 

H. Documents and Data Created or Stored in or by Structured Electronic Databases. 

1. With the exclusion of email and email account-related documents and 
data, all documents and accompanying metadata created and/or stored in 
structured electronic databases or files shall be produced in a format that 
enables the Trustee to reasonably manage and import those documents 
into a useable, coherent database. The documents must be accompanied 
with reasonably detailed, clear and focused documentation explaining the 
documents' content and format including but not limited to data 
dictionaries and diagrams. Some acceptable formats, if and only if 
provided with definitive file(s), table(s) and field level schemas include: 

a. XML format file(s); 

b. Microsoft SQL database(s); 

c. Access database(s); and/or 

d. fixed or variable length ASCII delimited files. 

I. Spreadsheets, Multimedia, and Non-Standard File Types. 

1. All documents generated or stored in software such as Microsoft Excel or 
other commercially available spreadsheet programs, as well as any 
multimedia files such as audio or video, shall be produced in their native 
format, along with an accompanying placeholder image in tiff format 
indicating a native file has been produced. A "Nativelink" entry shall be 

5 

09-01182-smb    Doc 337-21    Filed 04/07/17    Entered 04/07/17 18:01:36    Exhibit 20  
  Pg 16 of 18



included in the .dat load file indicating the relative file path to each native 
file on the production media. To the extent the party has other file types 
that do not readily or easily and accurately convert to tiff and searchable 
text, the party may elect to produce those files in native format subject to 
the other requirements listed herein. Native files may be produced within 
a separate root-level folder structure on deliverable media entitled 
"Natives." 

2. To the extent spreadsheets are being redacted, you shall produce the 
spreadsheets as redacted in TIFF format. Where necessary, the parties 
will negotiate in good faith productions in native format of redacted 
spreadsheets where production in TIFF format is impracticable 

J. "Other" Electronic Documents. 

1. All other documents and accompanying metadata and embedded data 
created or stored in unstructured files generated by commercially available 
software systems (excluding e-mails, structured electronic databases, 
spreadsheets, or multimedia) such as but not limited to word processing 
(such as Microsoft Word), image files (such as Adobe .pdf files, and other 
formats), and text files shall be produced in tiff and searchable text format 
in the order the files are or were stored in the ordinary course of business. 

VI. Production Format of Hard Copy Records 

Documents originally created or stored on paper shall be produced in TIFF format. 
Relationships between documents shall be identified within the .dat file utilizing document 
identifier numbers to express parent document/ child attachment boundaries, folder 
boundaries, and other groupings. In addition, the searchable text of each document shall 
be provided as a multi-page text file as provided for by these instructions. 

All responsive hard copy records shall be produced in the following formats: 

1. All images shall be delivered as single-page 300 dpi-resolution group IV 
TIF format. Image file names should not contain spaces. 

B. Unique IDs. 

1. Each image should have a unique file name and should be named with the 
Bates number assigned to it. 

C. OCR. 

1. High-quality multipage OCR text shall be provided. 

D. Database Load Files. 
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1. Database load files shall consist of: (I) a comma-delimited values (".dat") 
file containing: production document identifier information, data designed 
to preserve "parent and child" relationships within document "families", 
reasonably accessible and properly preserved metadata (or bibliographic 
coding in the case of paper documents), custodian or document source 
information, as well as native file loading/linking information (where 
applicable); and (2) an Opticon (".opt") file to facilitate the loading of tiff 
images. Load files should be provided in a root-level folder named 
"Data," images shall be provided within a root level "Images" folder 
containing reasonably structured subfolders, and searchable text files shall 
be provided in a single root-level "Text" folder. 

E. Unitizing of Records. 

I. In scanning hard copy records, distinct records shall not be merged into a 
single record, and single records shall not be split into multiple records. 

F. Parent-Child Relationship. 

I. Parent-child relationships (the association between an attachment and its 
parent record) should be preserved and produced. 

G. Objective Coding Fields. 

I. The following objective coding fields should be provided: 

a. Beginning Bates Number 

b. Ending Bates Number 

c. Beginning Attachment Bates Number 

d. Ending Attachment Bates Number 

e. Source/Custodian 

H. Objective Coding Format 

1. Fields should be Pipe (!) delimited. 

2. String values within the file should be enclosed with Carats("). 

3. Multiple entries in a field should have a semi-colon(;) delimiter. 

4. The first line should contain metadata headers and below the first line 
there should be exactly only one line for each record. 

5. Each field row must contain the same amount of fields as the header row. 
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